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          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's City Council joint hearing of the

          4  Committee on Aging, the Committee on Mental Health,

          5  Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and

          6  Disability Services and Committee on Transportation.

          7  We've convened for the purpose of examining new

          8  Access-A-Ride rules concerning eligibility

          9  requirements.  A couple of months ago we began

         10  receiving complaints from senior citizens, from

         11  people with disabilities and service providers about

         12  changes in the Access-A-Ride rules, particularly

         13  changes that require applicants for Access-A-Ride

         14  service to be evaluated by an MTA physician.  And

         15  that's a substantial departure from past practice

         16  and today we have convened this hearing for the

         17  purpose of understanding what the new rules are, the

         18  rationale behind these new rules and what its real

         19  impact will be on New Yorkers.  Access-A-Ride is

         20  obviously a very vital service, it's not only a

         21  service that helps people stay independent and able

         22  to move around the City, but it's federally

         23  mandated, so we need to make sure that the service

         24  is as available as possible and that's why we have

         25  invited members of the public, as well as officials
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          2  from the Metropolitan Transportation Authority, the

          3  agency which is charged with running the

          4  Access-A-Ride service to today's hearing.

          5                 I'm delighted and honored to be

          6  Co-Chairing today's hearing with my colleagues,

          7  Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo, the

          8  Chairperson of the Aging Committee, and Council

          9  Member Oliver Koppell, the Chairperson of the

         10  Committee on Mental Health, Mental Retardation,

         11  Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability Services.

         12                 We've been joined by Council Members

         13  Jimmy Vacca from the Bronx, Larry Seabrook from the

         14  Bronx, Simcha Felder from Brooklyn, Annabel Palma

         15  from the Bronx, Jessica Lappin from Manhattan, and

         16  we welcome her back from having had her baby just a

         17  few weeks ago.  It's incredible --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And it's hard to

         20  believe that she just had a baby.  And Council

         21  Member Helen Foster from the Bronx, Council Member

         22  Sara Gonzalez from Brooklyn and Council Member

         23  Daniel Garodnick from Manhattan.  At this point let

         24  me turn it over to my Co-Chairs.  Ladies first, with

         25  Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Thank

          3  you my Co-Chair.  I love that ladies first stuff,

          4  get away with murder.  I want to thank my

          5  colleagues, Council Member Liu and Council Member

          6  Koppell for agreeing to hold this joint hearing.  As

          7  the Chair of the Committee on Aging I deal with all

          8  of the issues affecting the senior population in the

          9  City and often go out to Senior Centers and Senior

         10  Service providers throughout the City.  And over the

         11  last several months, many complaints and concerns

         12  have been raised regarding the new process for

         13  eligibility and the impact that it has on the

         14  seniors in the City.  Many complaints regarding

         15  reliability of the service Access- A- Ride provides

         16  to our seniors and the frustrations that many

         17  experience when relying on this service to get to

         18  and from the places they need to get to.

         19                 We hope to hear some answers and

         20  commitments on the adjustments necessary to ensure

         21  that we can provide safe, reliable transportation

         22  services to the seniors and the disabled population

         23  of our City.  We look forward to hearing from the

         24  MTA and from the advocates in the audience and hope

         25  that we can have a conversation around solving some
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          2  of the concerns and problems that have been raised

          3  by so many in our City.

          4                 Thank you Mr. Co-Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          6  Chairman Koppell.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank you very

          8  much.  I'm pleased to participate as Chairman of the

          9  Committee with such a long name, but with respect to

         10  today's hearing, we're particularly concerned about

         11  disability services.  Of course the Access- A- Ride

         12  system is a critical part of our transportation

         13  infrastructure.  It is not, if you will, established

         14  by the City entirely voluntarily. It's the program

         15  that the City has established to meet the mandates

         16  of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which

         17  requires the City to provide power transit services,

         18  which is comparable to the level of designated

         19  public transportation to individuals without

         20  disabilities.  Thus the Access- A- Ride services

         21  must provide access and reasonable accommodation as

         22  required by law through the five boroughs of the

         23  City of New York for people with disabilities,

         24  serious illnesses, or frail senior citizens who

         25  cannot otherwise get around the City.
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          2                 We all know that this service has

          3  been the subject of great criticism and complaint

          4  and there have been a number of hearings, some of

          5  which we participated in as a Committee, with

          6  respect to Access- A- Ride.

          7                 We're particularly concerned, as my

          8  colleagues have said this morning, about the new

          9  application procedure and the requirement

         10  particularly of a face to face interview to review

         11  the applicants disability evaluation.

         12                 So I look forward to hearing from

         13  stakeholders and advocates.  I notice some

         14  advocates, a number of advocates here today, and I

         15  hope they didn't have too much trouble getting here

         16  with Access- A- Ride.  That has not been always

         17  true.  I also might say that Chairman Liu and I have

         18  agreed to hold a hearing on accessibility with

         19  respect to other aspects of the transportation

         20  systems, particularly accessibility to the subway

         21  system which remains a continuing problem, and

         22  that's not the subject of today's hearing but I

         23  mention it because I think that's an important

         24  aspect of this problem.  So I'm looking forward to

         25  the testimony today and hope to answer some of the
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          2  concerns that have been raised on these new

          3  procedures.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Chairman

          6  Koppell.  At this time I would like to invite the

          7  Officials from the Metropolitan Transportation

          8  Authority to join us.  In particular Thomas Charles,

          9  the Vice President in charge of Access- A- Ride

         10  operations.  We've also been joined by Council

         11  Member Joseph Addabbo Jr. From Queens.

         12                 Mr. Charles, please proceed.

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  Good morning

         14  Chairpersons Arroyo, Koppell and Liu and Members of

         15  the Council.  My name is Thomas Charles and I am

         16  Vice President for the Paratransit Division in the

         17  Department of Buses at MTA NYC Transit, which is

         18  responsible for the Access-A-Ride program,

         19  Paratransit program.

         20                 The Access-A-Ride program is an

         21  advance reservation shared ride, door to door

         22  paratransit service for people with disabilities,

         23  provided in accordance with the Americans with

         24  Disabilities Act of 1990.  It provides

         25  transportation for people who meet the eligibility
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          2  criteria set forth in the ADA, persons who are

          3  unable to use public buses or subways for some or

          4  all of their trips because of physical or mental

          5  disabilities.  Neither age nor income is a factor in

          6  the ADA criteria for eligibility.

          7                 At the end of 2006, Access-A-Ride

          8  received an average of 4,400 applications per month

          9  for a record high 97,679 eligible registrants.

         10  Current projections of demand for paratransit

         11  service indicate a growth rate of 15 percent per

         12  year for the next five years.

         13                 This hearing was called to discuss a

         14  recent change in our use of in- person assessments.

         15  Beginning on March 5, 2007, New York City Transit

         16  began referring all applicants for the service to

         17  eligibility assessment centers in their borough of

         18  residence.  Previously, dating from 1994, 50 percent

         19  of applicants have participated in in-person

         20  assessments.  The in-person assessment is a

         21  face-to-face interview conducted by a medical

         22  professional.  It gives New York City Transit a

         23  clearer picture of an applicant's travel ability.

         24  It also gives the applicant an opportunity to

         25  provide information that may have been omitted from
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          2  the application or missing from a doctor's note.

          3                 This change is to accomplish two

          4  primary requirements.  The first is that we can now

          5  ensure that all applicants receive the same fair,

          6  equitable and thorough evaluation of their

          7  disability for eligibility for paratransit service.

          8  The second requirement is that we can achieve

          9  compliance with the ADA requirement to issue

         10  determinations of eligibility within 21 days of the

         11  submission of a complete application.  In 2005 and

         12  2006 we averaged 30 days and 26 days, respectively,

         13  to process all applications.  As in the past, all

         14  applicants are provided round trip transportation to

         15  the assessment centers at a cost of $2.00 each way,

         16  the same cost as an Access-A-Ride trip.  We have

         17  continued the practice of permitting every applicant

         18  to travel with a personal care attendant at no

         19  additional cost.  The PCA may be a relative, friend

         20  or professional care giver.  Although a majority of

         21  applicants are over the age of 65, our experience

         22  has demonstrated that most do not have dementia or

         23  other neurological impairments that have an impact

         24  on their ability to travel independently.  However,

         25  for those that need assistance they may travel with
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          2  a PCA without charge.

          3                 The process was revised to ensure

          4  that all applicants receive the same fair, equitable

          5  and thorough evaluation of their disability.  These

          6  same procedures have already been successfully

          7  implemented in other major urban areas, such as

          8  Chicago, Washington, DC, Los Angeles, Baltimore,

          9  Dallas, Denver and the State of New Jersey.

         10                 I'd like to briefly describe the

         11  recent revisions to the application process

         12  requiring all applicants to undergo an assessment.

         13  To begin the application or recertification process

         14  all applicants now call the Access-A-Ride toll- free

         15  lines where they are told about the need to see a

         16  certifier and asked what days they are not available

         17  in the following 30 days.  Those days are not

         18  considered when scheduling an appointment.  The

         19  applicant is informed by mail of a date that has

         20  been selected.  If the date is not convenient

         21  applicants may reschedule.

         22                 The application is mailed minimally

         23  10 days prior to the scheduled assessment, giving

         24  individuals time to seek assistance from family or

         25  social service agencies.  The applicant brings the

                                                            13

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2  completed application to the appointment.  As in

          3  previous practice if an applicant is unable to call

          4  and request an application, another individual, a

          5  relative, friend, or social worker, may call and

          6  make the arrangements on behalf of the applicant.

          7                 There are three parts to the

          8  assessment.  First, the assessor reviews the

          9  completed application, which gives information about

         10  the persons's medical diagnosis and functional

         11  disabilities. Second, the assessor asks a series of

         12  questions to gain further insight into the

         13  applicant's disability and travel habits.  Lastly,

         14  if appropriate, the applicant undergoes a functional

         15  assessment designed to mirror some of activities

         16  associated with riding a regular transit bus.  This

         17  section of the evaluation includes asking the

         18  applicant to walk up several steps as would be done

         19  when boarding a bus.  Depending on the applicant's

         20  disability, not all individuals will be asked to

         21  perform the third part of the assessment.  The

         22  assessment process does not work on an all or

         23  nothing approach.  The assessment must consider when

         24  applicants may encounter certain conditions when

         25  they cannot use public transportation.

                                                            14

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2                 All assessors are licensed medical

          3  professionals under contract with New York City

          4  Transit.  Depending on the type of disability to be

          5  assessed the assessor may be a physical therapist,

          6  registered nurse, physician's assistant or

          7  psychiatrist. The assessors receive training in the

          8  eligibility criteria specified under the ADA and New

          9  York City Transit staff conducts refresher training

         10  and monthly unannounced visits to the assessment

         11  sites.

         12                 In connection with the change

         13  requiring all applicants to undergo in- person

         14  assessment the Access-A-Ride eligibility period was

         15  lengthened to five years from three years, reducing

         16  the frequency in which a customer is required to

         17  recertify their eligibility.  In addition we will

         18  continue the practice of granting continual

         19  eligibility to customers whose disability is

         20  unlikely to improve and is of such severity that it

         21  is likely that the condition will worsen over time.

         22  Customers with this designation are not required to

         23  be recertified, but merely to update their

         24  registration information at the end of the five year

         25  eligibility period.
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          2                 These recent revisions to the

          3  application process have resulted in a more timely

          4  and equitable method of determining eligibility for

          5  Access-A-Ride service.  We are aware of the concerns

          6  expressed about this change in the process.  You

          7  should be aware that prior to implementing these

          8  revisions we sent announcements to over 400 social

          9  service agencies and disability advocacy groups.

         10  These agencies include groups that serve both the

         11  disability and senior communities.

         12                 I would note that as of April 20, we

         13  have received many more calls for applications than

         14  the previous mail- in system and this has resulted

         15  in an increase in referrals and eligibility

         16  determinations.  Our outreach activities continue

         17  where we average eight to ten visits to community

         18  organizations each month.  We meet with our

         19  Paratransit Advisory Committee bi-monthly to listen

         20  to the concerns of the community and address

         21  concerns where feasible.  We will continue to

         22  closely monitor the process and make adjustments

         23  when needed.

         24                 We're now prepared to answer your

         25  questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          3  Mr. Charles. I have a couple of questions.  I know

          4  we have questions from the panel that has convened

          5  here.

          6                 The system used to be that someone

          7  applying for Access-A-Ride would provide some kind

          8  of a letter from their doctor stating their

          9  disability.  Is that correct?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So now, based on

         12  your testimony, it's not only a doctor or physician

         13  that's been contracted by the MTA, but it's an

         14  assessor. And what are the qualifications of these

         15  accessors, apart from that they get regular training

         16  from the MTA on ADA requirements.

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  Well I mentioned their

         18  positions are either registered nurse, physician's

         19  assistant.  This assessment is a functional

         20  assessment, it's not a medical.  We do not perform

         21  any medical treatment or diagnosis.  It's based on

         22  the ADA guidelines about the ability or disability

         23  to travel on public transportation. And so the

         24  assessment is looking at the application and the

         25  information that the applicant has provided, and as
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          2  I mentioned in the three parts, there's a discussion

          3  to see what is their travel patterns, what is it

          4  that they would need for Access-A-Ride to help them

          5  with, and if needed, we do perform a functional

          6  assessment, but it's not a medical assessment, it's

          7  functional.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think those would

          9  differ on that because disability, I don't know if

         10  an assessor would be necessarily qualified to

         11  determine if someone is disabled or disabled enough

         12  to warrant access to the Access-A-Ride system.

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  Well we've been doing

         14  this since 1994 with 50 percent of our applications

         15  and this is within the guidelines of ADA, this has

         16  been looked at, and physical therapists, registered

         17  nurses, physician's assistants can determine the

         18  functional capabilities and make that assessment.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.  Which leads

         20  me to my main question.  If the system has been in

         21  place since 1994, why the change now?  Is it because

         22  of the large growth in applicants and customers of

         23  Access-A-Ride?

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Well I mentioned there

         25  were two reasons.  The ADA guidelines require us to
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          2  process applications within 21 days.  We haven't

          3  been able to do that.  What happens at the 21st day,

          4  if we're not able to render a decision, the person

          5  is placed on the service as presumptive eligibility.

          6    However, that presents us with problems when the

          7  determination later comes out, whether it be a

          8  conditional eligibility or a denial, and so in order

          9  to meet that ADA requirement we decided that it

         10  would be best to now send all to the assessment

         11  centers, have them call for the application,

         12  complete the application, and this way we could

         13  achieve the 21 day turnaround.  At the same time,

         14  everyone gets the same fair and equitable

         15  evaluation.  Having some done in- house and some

         16  done to assessment centers was not equally

         17  distributed.  So this is now something that will

         18  allow us to provide a fair assessment to all on

         19  applying for Access- A- Ride.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It seems a little

         21  bit hard to believe that we're streamlining the

         22  process when there's a significant step being added

         23  by the MTA in-house, whereas before, I think it's

         24  pretty simple, before it used to be that the

         25  eligibility was determined by the MTA, by the people

                                                            19

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2  who run Access-A-Ride based on the application and

          3  the certification from the applicants doctor.  And

          4  there was just paperwork.  Now you're saying that

          5  the MTA is introducing a whole new level of review.

          6  It's a very different level of review when we now

          7  say that it's not just the paperwork, the

          8  application that's being examined by someone running

          9  Access-A-Ride, but now there actually has to be a

         10  physical assessment of the applicant by someone in

         11  the MTA.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  An in-person assessment

         13  by contracted assessment centers with medical

         14  professionals, which we've been doing at 50 percent

         15  and now increased to 100 percent.  As you mentioned,

         16  a paper, a doctor's note, doesn't really tell

         17  whether the person is able or not to travel.  An in-

         18  person assessment will clear that all up.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So now that's the

         20  real reason why it's being changed.  You can't

         21  expect -- you're sitting here -- I'm asking why it

         22  is that the system was changed and Mr. Charles, with

         23  all due respect, and I know that you've worked very

         24  hard on improving the system, but we need some

         25  forthrightness here.  You're saying that it was
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          2  changed to streamline the system and to make the

          3  application streamline because you're saying that it

          4  was hard for the MTA to meet the ADA requirement of

          5  a 21 approval process. --

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Right, I didn't use the

          7  word streamline, you did.  I said 21 days --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, to help the

          9  MTA comply with the ADA time requirements, which the

         10  MTA has not been able to, as well as providing a

         11  fairer, more equitable and consistent application

         12  procedure for everybody who is applying for Access-

         13  A Ride.

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  See that part just

         16  doesn't make sense.  The real reason why this change

         17  has been implemented is what you elude to but don't

         18  say outright, which is that there is some skepticism

         19  on the part of the MTA as to the validity of the

         20  certifications from these doctors that their

         21  patients are indeed disabled and eligible for

         22  Access-A-Ride.  That's the real issue right now that

         23  we're exploring.  That's the real reason that the

         24  MTA has changed these eligibility rules.  Not to

         25  make the application fairer, not to allow the MTA to
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          2  comply with the 21 day turnaround as required by the

          3  ADA, but really because the MTA thinks that too many

          4  people are getting away and slipping into the

          5  system, whereas, the MTA doesn't believe that so

          6  many people should actually be in the Access-A-Ride

          7  system.  That's the real reason.

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  I don't see that.  We

          9  have our projections for growth, the demand will be

         10  there.  This allows for a fair process for all.  As

         11  you know, the growth pattern is double digits for

         12  the next five years with no saturation point.  And

         13  in fact, since going into this procedure March 5th,

         14  we have seen a significant increase in applications,

         15  significant in assessments and determinations.  I do

         16  not see this process as discouraging.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  None of those, and

         18  I think that's a good sign that should result in

         19  kudos for you and the MTA and the people who run

         20  Access-A-Ride, that the service has in all fairness,

         21  over the years, been getting more reliable and

         22  therefore more people are applying for it, as well

         23  as more New Yorkers understanding that they now have

         24  a way to continue to be independent longer, even

         25  with a disability.  But the question still remains,
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          2  why is it that the MTA has now changed the

          3  procedure?

          4                 MR. CHARLES:  Well as I mentioned,

          5  other properties throughout the Country, in looking

          6  at the service have gone to 100 percent.  We were --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There are a lot of

          8  other things that these major Cities do with their

          9  Paratransit systems that we would love for the MTA

         10  to do here in New York.

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  No one has the volume

         12  or the magnitude of service that we have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Hey, there's no

         14  question that the Access-A-Ride system in New York

         15  is vast and comprehensive, but --

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  If the customer needs

         17  to apply, it's a direct process now.  It's call us,

         18  we will answer your questions, we will set up an

         19  appointment, and we will make sure there is a fair

         20  evaluation, in person, because many things don't

         21  come across on paper, on a doctors note, it's a give

         22  and take, you look and say what are your travel

         23  needs, what are your disabilities?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  So then --

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  It's much fairer to
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          2  consider that persons needs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right, I have

          4  to go next door to vote momentarily.  Let me ask you

          5  this then, since the new system was implemented,

          6  March 5th, how many applicants have been reviewed

          7  under the new system where an in- house assessor is

          8  making the determination of eligibility?

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  Right now we have close

         10  to 7,000 assessments, which is up from our average

         11  of 3,000, and this is --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, but how many of

         13  them have been processed?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  We've had, I'll give

         15  you an example, March we finished at 3,300

         16  determinations.  In April we were up at 4,700.  So

         17  it's an increase in the determinations for

         18  eligibility, and as I mentioned, the call volume

         19  requests have also exceeded our mail- in.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Forty seven hundred

         21  applications for Access-A-Ride processed since March

         22  5th, since the new --

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  We ended at 3,300

         24  determinations. April it has now surpassed the March

         25  number, it's at 4,700.  Each month --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm just trying to

          3  get an idea of what this means.  So, does that mean

          4  we have about 8,000 applications processed under the

          5  new system?

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  It's increasing on

          9  every front.  Call in's, assessment referrals, and

         10  determinations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, no matter how

         12  they came in, we're talking about 8,000 applications

         13  processed under the new system.  Now out of those

         14  8,000 how many of them have been approved and how

         15  many of them have been rejected, roughly speaking?

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  Roughly speaking I

         17  would say close to 98 percent have been approved for

         18  eligibility.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ninety eight

         20  percent of the new --

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  Because under the ADA

         22  guidelines there is an appeal process which is also

         23  another way of getting an in person assessment of

         24  the person, something that may have not come up in

         25  the interview, may not have come up, or it was a
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          2  recent development in their condition, and the

          3  appeal process, which is an ADA requirement, we also

          4  take that into account, so our denials and appeals

          5  is not a significant portion of the process.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, all right,

          7  let me turn it over to my Co-Chair, Council Member

          8  Koppell.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank you.  I

         10  have a few additional questions.

         11                 First of all, until the new process,

         12  you said you did in- person interviews of 50

         13  percent.

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  How did you

         16  chose those 50 percent?

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  It was just a random

         18  selection.  We didn't have any specific criteria.

         19  It was just the volume that came in and we referred

         20  usually to the borough, we always had an assessment

         21  center in the borough of residents.  So wherever the

         22  numbers came in, we would send them to the

         23  assessment center, but there was no specific

         24  criteria for that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: I mean did you
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          2  do it at random, is that it?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, I would say.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  You just sort

          5  of picked one out of every two and said this one

          6  requires a personal or did you do it based on the

          7  nature of the alleged disability?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  No, if some were not

          9  clear in the application we would ask for an in-

         10  person assessment, if there wasn't a description in

         11  the application that would give us a good

         12  understanding of their need.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So until now

         14  the in- person assessment was not done on a random

         15  basis, it was done where you had some reason perhaps

         16  to question.

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  A small percentage.  It

         18  was random but a small percentage would be as with

         19  any process.  An application isn't really clear on

         20  what their need is, so we would send them for an in-

         21  person assessment, but that was not the majority.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Did you find in

         23  the process that you had until now, did you ever do

         24  any kind of analysis of people who had been approved

         25  to see whether they were genuinely disabled?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  No, we just --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Did you do any

          4  test of that?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  No, our numbers -- we

          6  have a small denial rate, we have an appeal process,

          7  there was no indication that this was discouraging

          8  or preventing persons who needed the service from

          9  getting the service.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  That's not the

         11  question.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  I think to be

         14  very candid about it, the Chairman I think properly

         15  indicated that our suspicion is that the reason that

         16  you changed the system is you believe that a

         17  significant number of people were cheating, if  you

         18  will, and that you think this system is going to

         19  reveal more fully whether people are actually

         20  eligible.  That's the suspicion we have.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  We would have gotten

         22  that from our appeal process.  As I mentioned, if

         23  there's a denial, the applicant has the opportunity

         24  to appeal.  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Yes, but that
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          2  would not have revealed that people who were

          3  approved were not in deed eligible. Your appeal

          4  process wouldn't show that at all.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  I think it would.  It

          6  would show us whether there have been borderline

          7  applications, so to speak, and we would have to make

          8  a determination.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  The concern is

         10  that people might have gotten doctor's notes that

         11  say Mr. X is disabled and that doctor wasn't telling

         12  the truth.  Unfortunately we find that this happens

         13  in our society that people commit fraud if you want

         14  to us a tough word, but it's true.  Especially where

         15  they're trying to get access to services.  Often

         16  times we find unfortunately that people mislead

         17  those providing the services.  Did you study people

         18  who were approved without an in- person interview

         19  and find that there was any significant amount of

         20  this kind of, if I will call it, cheating going on?

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  No, there was no study

         22  for that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: So you

         24  absolutely deny that the new system was instituted

         25  to discourage cheating?  That was not one of the
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          2  reasons for the new system?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.  It's for

          4  processing the demand that we see, the projections

          5  show that the aging of America will bring a

          6  significant population in need of this service.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: What I don't

          8  understand is, assuming that what you say is so,

          9  that cheating was not a concern, how is it possible

         10  that doing an in- person interview is more efficient

         11  than reviewing paperwork?  That's your contention.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Because it's --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Is that your

         14  contention?

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, how is

         17  that possible?

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  Because as I said,

         19  everything on paper does not give you an accurate

         20  portrayal of the persons ability for the need for

         21  Access-A-Ride.  In the interview process we're able

         22  to determine the functional abilities, their needs

         23  for service, that may not come out on the

         24  application process or a doctors line.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So if it
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          2  doesn't come out on the application process, under

          3  the current system they would be denied if it wasn't

          4  clear in the application, right?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And then

          7  there's an appeal process.

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And you said

         10  that's a very small number of cases?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  In proportion to the

         12  number of cases submitted, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So if there's

         14  only a few people who are denied and going to the

         15  appeal process because of misleading applications,

         16  it just doesn't make sense to me that review of a

         17  paper application is less efficient than an in-

         18  person interview.  With a paper application you

         19  don't need to make an appointment, you don't need to

         20  deal with arranging for an appointment, you don't

         21  need to deal with the time taken for the person to

         22  come in, to be seen, I mean, you don't need to have

         23  a room for that assessment, a space for it, you

         24  don't need to have equipment for it, you do it on

         25  paper with a doctors note.  Now if you told me that
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          2  there was a lot of cheating going on, I might agree

          3  we should change the process.  But I simply cannot

          4  believe that making a determination on paperwork is

          5  less efficient than in in-person interview.  It

          6  makes no sense to me.

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  Well in processing

          8  paper applications, you need to further call the

          9  customer or the applicant for clarification.  It was

         10  back and forth.  This is a more direct approach.  It

         11  is not only answering questions at the time of phone

         12  calls and sending the application, but when they

         13  reach the assessment center there is another review

         14  to make sure that the application is complete, that

         15  we answer their questions and we have a complete

         16  analysis.  When we have it in- house you don't get

         17  that. You have to make subsequent calls, ask for

         18  more documentation, that is the inefficiency.  And

         19  that is where our 21 days was challenged. We're not

         20  able to reach the 21 days because we have to go

         21  searching for information with the applicant.  Here

         22  it's very direct, and everyone, everyone, who

         23  applies gets the same analysis.  It's not 50 percent

         24  get one way, and 50 get --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  What percentage
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          2  of applicants in the old process required more than

          3  simply a review, that required this back and forth

          4  you're talking about.  How many, what percentage

          5  required that?

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  The in- person

          7  assessment?  I'm not following?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  No, you said

          9  that the problem with the paperwork review is that

         10  it required calling the applicant, getting further

         11  information, and so on.  What percentage of

         12  applications required that kind of follow- up,

         13  rather than simply a review of the papers and the

         14  examiner saying, look the doctors note says this

         15  person cannot climb steps, the doctors notes says

         16  this person requires a Paratransit system.  What

         17  percentage of those applications required the

         18  examiner to contact the individual and say we don't

         19  have sufficient information, we need to get more

         20  from you?

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  I would say roughly 30

         22  to 40 percent, and that's again attributing to the

         23  26 or 30 days that went beyond the 21 days.  That's

         24  adding to that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Why not have a
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          2  system that if the applications are incomplete then

          3  require an in- person interview rather than

          4  requiring it 100 percent?  Why not do that?  If

          5  that's a problem, incomplete applications, you could

          6  have a process, we'll have an initial paperwork

          7  review if there are any issues open we'll then call

          8  the person and contact the person and say you have

          9  to come in.  But why not do that rather than

         10  requiring every single person to come in?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  It gives everyone the

         12  same review of their application, it's totally

         13  objective, instead of relying on information on the

         14  application, you get a more objective analysis with

         15  an in- person.  That would definitely give a fair

         16  process to all applicants.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But the people

         18  who are approved are not concerned about a fair

         19  process.

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  But we are.  We need to

         21  be --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Ah ha, now

         23  we're getting to the point, aren't we?  That you're

         24  concerned that people are cheating and that this is

         25  a way to avoid the cheating.  It's not that you want
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          2  more efficiency.  It's that you're concerned that

          3  some people are getting away with getting the

          4  service who you don't think deserves it.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  I'm showing you the

          6  numbers, it has increased, I'm showing you the

          7  projections, and everyone who needs the service.  We

          8  need to provide the service.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Sir, are you

         10  saying to me, saying to us publicly, saying to the

         11  public, that there's an increase in applicants

         12  because the process is more difficult?

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  No, more direct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So you say

         15  people were discouraged from applying because they

         16  only had to put in paperwork, and now they're

         17  encouraged because they have an in person interview?

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  No, I'm saying the

         19  phone calls for applications have increased, the

         20  application request has increased more than our

         21  mail- in process and our determinations have

         22  increased since going to this process.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Why do you

         24  think that's happened?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  Because it's more
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          2  direct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, so why

          4  not --

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  The questions are

          6  answered on the phone at that time, their questions

          7  are answered at the assessment center, it's more

          8  direct, and it makes for a more efficient process,

          9  and it gets them onto the service when they need the

         10  service.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, why not

         12  have a process then if people would like the in-

         13  person opportunity, you could say, you can apply in

         14  writing, by mail or maybe by computer, but if you

         15  want an in- person interview you can have that?  If

         16  you say you that people are -- you say more people

         17  are applying now because they can get an in- person

         18  interview.  That's your contention, right?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:   No, I'm saying that

         20  since we changed the process we're getting calls

         21  which were higher than our mail ins, and we're

         22  answering questions.  So now it's a direct process.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Are you saying

         24  that before now you couldn't call?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  You wouldn't know
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          2  unless an application came in, that the person was

          3  interested.  We had no idea.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So how is it

          5  now?  How do we know now?

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  We're seeing our call

          7  volumes, our applications, our referrals, and our

          8  determinations have all increased.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:   Wait a minute.

         10    Are you saying that before now you couldn't call

         11  in, is that what you're saying?

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Right, it was mailed

         13  in. Prior to this --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  There was no

         15  call in process?

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  No, we wouldn't know

         17  until we received an application from a customer

         18  that they wanted the service.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And now you can

         20  know because people can call.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  They call us and that's

         22  the start of the process.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So why not,

         24  again, instead of requiring everybody to come in for

         25  an in- person interview, why not add to your prior
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          2  process a call- in system.  Not a mandatory call in

          3  system, but an optional one.  I can understand that

          4  having call in is helpful, but I don't understand

          5  why you need to have this mandatory interview.  As

          6  long as you let people call in and say you can call

          7  in if you want, but if you want to put your

          8  application in writing you could still do that, why

          9  not have that?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  Again, to an in- person

         11  assessment clears up everything.  So --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So it's to

         13  prevent cheating, right?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  We did not design this

         15  for that.  We see a large demand for the service.

         16  Everyone wants the Access- A Ride.  We want to make

         17  sure it's a fair evaluation and the in person allows

         18  for direct processing.  Direct, not we wait to see

         19  who's interested from a mail- in, we know from the

         20  phone calls, we know that the process begins, we get

         21  them transported to the assessment center, and in

         22  that interview, primarily interview, we make sure

         23  the applications complete and that things that may

         24  not have been described accurately are now observed

         25  and we can put down that need for that service.
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          2  It's very objective.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Sir, with all

          4  due respect, I'm not going to go through this

          5  anymore.  If a person is approved, they're not going

          6  to complain about the process.  The only reason that

          7  people might complain about a process is if they're

          8  denied. So if the current process is approving

          9  people, the fact that they don't have this

         10  interview, then this so called objective process

         11  doesn't matter.  The only reason to change it is if

         12  people are being improperly approved and before you

         13  made that change, in my opinion, there should have

         14  been some study to determine how much cheating was

         15  going on.  If there was a lot of cheating, I would

         16  be in favor of what you've done.  But if there was a

         17  relatively small number of people taking advantage,

         18  this obviously adds cost, obviously adds cost.  In

         19  my opinion, it also, instead of making it more

         20  efficient in terms of processing time, it has got to

         21  either make it much more costly or much more time

         22  consuming.  So frankly, I find your testimony to be

         23  not credible.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, I'm sorry about

         25  that, but I disagree.  With the volume that we see
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          2  and project we need to make sure that we have a fair

          3  objective evaluation, and a timely evaluation to get

          4  the person to the service when they need it. The

          5  numbers are showing me that we have that increase

          6  coming to us. This process is not discouraged.  It

          7  has increased the calls, the processing and the

          8  determinations.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  It just defies

         10  credibility that you're making more applicants

         11  because you've made the process more difficult. --

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Direct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  It just defies

         14  credibility.

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  You say difficult, I

         16  say it's more direct.  They call, we give them their

         17  answers, they have a direct person at the assessment

         18  center.  It's a very direct process.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But you could

         20  have provided that optionally.  If people want that,

         21  you could have said if you want an assessment, you

         22  can get it, but you don't need to do it.

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, to give everybody

         24  a fair evaluation, this is 100 percent, all

         25  applicants go through this process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Right, in order

          3  to prevent cheating.  That's exactly right.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          6  Chairperson Arroyo.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Thank

          8  you Council Member Liu.  Mr. Charles, good almost

          9  afternoon, how are you? Thank you for your

         10  testimony.

         11                 You testified that there is a

         12  Paratransit Advisory Committee that bimonthly meets

         13  to listen to the concerns of the Community and to

         14  address concerns where feasible.  What is the

         15  Committee composition?

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  Various members of

         17  Advocacy Groups in the Five Boroughs.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Could

         19  you provide who sits, a list --

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, we could get you

         21  that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  -- Of

         23  what groups are represented on that?  To be more

         24  direct, you may have the wrong advocates on that

         25  Advisory Committee.  I think when you hear from the
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          2  advocates that certainly I deal with as Chair of the

          3  Committee on Aging, they don't seem to be included

          4  in this conversation.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  I didn't say they were

          6  quiet meetings. They are very vocal meetings and

          7  those advocates do have a very strong network --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  I'm

          9  interested in who sits on the committee.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  We'll give you that

         11  list.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         13  That's my question.

         14                 This new system was implemented when?

         15

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  March 5th we went from

         17  50 percent to 100 percent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  In

         19  2007.

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  You

         22  mentioned that there was correspondence to those who

         23  were currently using the system, or how was the

         24  outreach done to advise the consumers of the change

         25  in the process?  How much lead time did they get?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  Oh, back in November

          3  and December we sent out letters to social service

          4  agencies.  Our newsletter referred to the change in

          5  the process.  And the website also provided the

          6  change announcement of the process.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  So

          8  since March you have reduced, or you're closer to

          9  compliance.  You went from 30 days to 26 days, but

         10  you're still above the expected standard of 21 days,

         11  by five days.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  It's not expected, it's

         13  a mandatory standard.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         15  Expectation, okay.

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  We need to comply.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  We

         18  won't play semantics.

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  We need to comply.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  I get

         21  it.  So you're still over the standard of what it is

         22  that you're expected to comply with.

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         25  What's the delay, why haven't you closed the gap?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  As I mentioned with

          3  mail- in applications, you don't always get the

          4  complete application, you don't have all the

          5  information, you need to contact the applicant and

          6  it's an exchange back and forth waiting for

          7  information --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Okay,

          9  let me, my assumption is that you change the system

         10  and now everyone has had to go through this

         11  recertification process.  That's not the case? Yet?

         12  You have how many people that you see over the

         13  course of a year between the implementation and now,

         14  how many of those individuals have you seen?

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  Seen in what, the

         16  assessment?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  In

         18  your assessment center.  I read ninety five thousand

         19   --

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  No, we have 97,000

         21  registrants --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         23  Ninety seven -- right.  You've processed how many?

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  We add about 4,400

         25  applications a month, of which that about 1,000 are
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          2  recertifications, the rest or the balance is new

          3  applications.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  At

          5  the rate that you're going, when do you anticipate

          6  meeting that 21 day standard?

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  We're starting to

          8  achieve it now, but that's something we look at each

          9  month to say from the date the applications

         10  received, were we able to render a determination

         11  within the 21 days.  I mention that we send the

         12  application ten days before the assessment scheduled

         13  appointment and that's our timeline to say we can

         14  achieve the 21 days if they make the appointment,

         15  the assessments performed, we get the decision back

         16  from the assessment, and then we concur.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Okay,

         18  so lets talk a little bit about the process that I

         19  as a consumer would have to experience in trying to

         20  get recertified.  I call in, I tell them what days

         21  I'm not available in 30 days, and then I get an

         22  appointment back in the mail.

         23                 MR. CHARLES:   Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  And

         25  then I have ten days to get what done?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  In the mail you get the

          3  application, you get the car service to call for the

          4  transport to and from the assessment center, and an

          5  explanation of the process, and that ten days allows

          6  you to call us again, or reach out to your friends,

          7  family, social service agencies for any help in

          8  completing the application because when you go to

          9  the assessment you are to bring the completed

         10  application, your photo ID for the ID card, and any

         11  other information that you believe would be

         12  pertinent.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  What

         14  other information is required?  Is there a

         15  requirement to see a medical professional to get

         16  something signed- off on, certified?

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  If you believe it will

         18  help to explain your need for the service and your

         19  disabilities, you're asked to bring those lines.

         20  It's not mandatory.  But if you think it will help

         21  explain your need, you can bring those lines and it

         22  will be reviewed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  I

         24  think one of the major issues here that this is yet

         25  another appointment that someone who otherwise is
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          2  very taxed physically has to deal with.  How often

          3  is this recertification required?

          4                 MR. CHARLES:  It was every three

          5  years.  With this change it's now every five years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Okay.

          7    What happens if I don't have a phone and my letter

          8  gets lost in the mail, how long do I wait for

          9  another appointment?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  If you made the initial

         11  call and we sent it out and you did not appear for

         12  the assessment, we would reach out to find out what

         13  occurred.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  This

         15  assumes that they have phone numbers and that the

         16  mail delivery is reliable, which is a problem.  And

         17  in many cases these individuals who are requiring

         18  these services are living in very large buildings,

         19  if you don't put an apartment number on the envelope

         20  it gets sent back to you.  How much mail comes back

         21  to you that can get linked to someone missing an

         22  appointment?  Ten days is not a whole lot of time in

         23  between the date of the appointment and what they're

         24  expected to respond to.  And often, having

         25  experience with sending appointments in the mail, as
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          2  a health care provider once upon a time, there's a

          3  lot of returned mail that comes back because the

          4  postal person didn't deliver it because it didn't

          5  have, when you go to a NYCHA facility for example,

          6  where you have hundreds of units in one building,

          7  they just don't deliver the mail, it goes back. So

          8  I'm waiting for the letter, I called in, I'm waiting

          9  for you to send me an appointment, but I don't get

         10  it.  And then I call you again and you mail me an

         11  appointment and I don't get it again.  And then

         12  comes time that my certification is due or will

         13  expire and I'm eligible, I should be receiving the

         14  service, but because the systems problems that are

         15  not attributed to MTA but the reality that we

         16  experience in life every single day contribute to

         17  the break in service for those that need it.  What

         18  is the number of return mail that you get, and how

         19  many individuals get caught up in that back and

         20  forth that could potentially lose their eligibility

         21  in the process?

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  I'll have to get you

         23  that number. It's a small number.  Because we try to

         24  get an explanation as to why they did not appear for

         25  the assessment and as I mentioned, we reschedule if
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          2  needed, and what we find is in most cases we're able

          3  to get a hold of the individual and get an

          4  explanation.  Some have said to us that they were

          5  interested but they'll wait another while before

          6  resubmitting.  But our recertifications are not --

          7  we follow up to say, is there a change, do you need

          8  the service.  We can get you the number, but it's

          9  not a significant number.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  One

         11  last question and then I'll defer to my colleagues.

         12  I usually defer to my colleagues before I question,

         13  but, there are different levels of professionals

         14  that are part of this assessment unit team, the

         15  assessors, you have physical therapists, registered

         16  nurses, physician's assistant's and psychiatrists.

         17  Is there a variation in terms of how each of those

         18  professionals evaluate and the outcome of the

         19  eligibility?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  No, not for the

         21  physical therapist, the nurse and so forth.  The

         22  psychiatrist is there for cognitive, but other than

         23  that, they're all looking at the criteria set by the

         24  ADA guidelines.  We give them that training and we

         25  go there and make sure that we reinforce those
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          2  guidelines from the ADA and it's equal to all.  It's

          3  not one having a different view as opposed to

          4  another.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  And

          6  has consideration been given to using a uniformed

          7  document that health care professionals can complete

          8  to provide to MTA to determine eligibility?  M 11

          9  Q's in assessing an individuals eligibility for many

         10  social services that are provided is the form that

         11  health care providers use to communicate for their

         12  patients their conditions and based on the

         13  information on that form, that agency makes a

         14  determination with regards to the needs or the

         15  services that individual should receive.  Has any

         16  consideration been given to designing a document

         17  that, instead of a doctors note, that is subjective

         18  and allows for missing information, if you will, to

         19  be used to allow individuals to take to their health

         20  care provider. Have that document completed with a

         21  very clear explanation if anything is missing you're

         22  going to delay that process so that the health care

         23  provider understands that.  Training and information

         24  given to health care providers to get them on board

         25  with understanding that so that when they get the
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          2  form they complete it as thoroughly as it should be

          3  and that form gets sent back in instead of having

          4  the individual there physically.  That's the

          5  question and maybe some thought about how we can in

          6  trying to facilitate the life of the individuals

          7  that we're here to protect and make sure that we do

          8  what we can as a City for them, that we minimize the

          9  need for them to have to do another appointment to

         10  have to get the services that they require.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         13  Chairperson Arroyo. We've been joined by Council

         14  Members Kendall Stewart from Brooklyn, Gale Brewer

         15  from Manhattan, Simcha Felder from Brooklyn, Dennis

         16  Gallagher from Queens, Miguel Martinez from

         17  Manhattan and Letitia James from Brooklyn, and

         18  Council Member Michael McMahon from Staten Island.

         19  We have questions from Council Member Sara Gonzalez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Good

         21  morning Mr. Charles, how are you?  Thank you for

         22  your presentation.

         23                 I'm going to go back to what you

         24  spoke to us in respect to this team of

         25  professionals.  And I do understand that according
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          2  to what you were saying, there were barriers to the

          3  old process.  I'd really like to know if you have

          4  those barriers listed I would like to be able to see

          5  those because obviously they were barriers and I'm

          6  not going to sit here and expect you give me that.

          7  At least if you could get back to us with that I

          8  would appreciate it. --

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  -- If

         11  that's okay Chairperson?  The other thing is, a team

         12  of professionals, what I want to understand is, this

         13  team of professionals that consists of physical

         14  therapists, registered nurse, physician's assistant,

         15  and psychiatrist, is there a cost to that, and do

         16  they work as a team, because I know that Council

         17  Member Arroyo, our Chair of the Aging Committee also

         18  asked you in respect to the process, the protocol?

         19  How is it that they work?  Does one person screen

         20  the person or is it a whole team of people?  Or do

         21  they sometimes utilize the psychiatrist when

         22  necessary on cognitive skills?  Okay, isn't that a

         23  costly team?  I mean what is the cost?  Is there any

         24  possibility that we could know that?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay,

          3  that's number, all right.  So now, the question that

          4  I have, and I guess more than anything it's a

          5  statement, people that have disabilities depending,

          6  it doesn't matter what age they are, they're

          7  seniors, they're middle aged, they're young people,

          8  whatever they are, we definitely have a need for the

          9  service.  This is an incredible service that is

         10  being provided here.  This is very important, but in

         11  doing this protocol and this process, good thing

         12  that you do it and you certify every three years, I

         13  like that because at least people don't have to go

         14  through this trauma unless -- every three years?

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  It's changing to five.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  To five

         17  it's going to change.

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  This whole process

         19  brings it to five.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay, I

         21  think that's a good thing because I wouldn't want to

         22  go through this every year or every six months if I

         23  have the need to do it.

         24                 Okay, the other thing is, there is

         25  trauma.  You know I'm a clinician, my background is
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          2  clinical and there is trauma to having to go through

          3  all these processes.  You know, first of all, if

          4  you're Medicaid eligible, you've already been

          5  processed.  If you have any kind of disability, any

          6  kind of insurance, you've already been processed.

          7  So to have to go through another process because you

          8  have a need to travel and the get this service, this

          9  definitely, and what we want today I think and my

         10  colleagues and I, is to smooth out this process

         11  because it discourages people, it certainly does.

         12  And so of course we're going to think if there's a

         13  way to trying to avoid people cheating the system.

         14  And if it is, we need to call it that because you

         15  know what, these things do happen in the City of New

         16  York and we do want to protect our money and make

         17  sure that people and everyone's who's eligible

         18  should get the service, not just people who aren't.

         19  That is important.  I just want you to please bear

         20  in mind because you are the leader and I'm sure you

         21  have a lot of incredible people that you work with,

         22  that trauma at any age is trauma.  And sometimes

         23  when people are going for applications, depending on

         24  the persons assessing them, they also go through a

         25  lot of grief and a lot of humiliation.  And because
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          2  you need a service and you've worked all your life,

          3  or you pay taxes, you deserve it.  So I think that

          4  we just need to look at that.  And I really would be

          5  interested in maybe trying to get a form that you

          6  utilize for protocol.  I'd love to see that, to see

          7  how you work that.  Because I think we all do a lot

          8  of different work and I know a couple of us here are

          9  clinicians and have worked as providers, so maybe we

         10  could also give you some ideas as to how we can

         11  shorten this process.  Because I have to tell you

         12  that I really am interested in finding out how much

         13  you spent on the psychiatrist and all these people

         14  because trained people are important.  And I also

         15  want to say, that what she stated, Council Member

         16  Arroyo about the M 11 Q, that was a form that was

         17  utilized by Division of Aids early on in 1988 and it

         18  really can't be cheated, it's not something that

         19  people could make up or whatever. There's no way.

         20  So a social worker has to sign- off, a physician has

         21  to sign- off.  So if these people already signed-

         22  off then they just submit that to you and it makes

         23  your job easy so you know these people are eligible.

         24    Are there people that maybe don't have that kind

         25  of form because they don't have the kind of
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          2  diagnosis, then that's different.  Or just may have

          3  disabilities that are minor but yet need some

          4  assistance, then maybe you need to look at that.

          5  Okay.  I certainly would love to give you further

          6  ideas, but I know time is short, so thank you.

          7  Thank you so much.  Thank you Chairs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

          9  Member Gonzalez.

         10                 Questions from Council Member Foster.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Good morning.

         12    Couple of quick questions.  Is there a -- let me

         13  try another one.  Sorry. Good morning.  Okay, here

         14  we go.  Is there a tier system with this new

         15  application process where some people are

         16  automatically assumed to need the services and then

         17  others would have to call the advocate or whatever

         18  it is, or is everybody across the board?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Right, it's 100

         20  percent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Why is that?

         22  Is there no -- it appears to me that it would maybe

         23  be easier if you give presumptive eligibility if

         24  there's a criteria of ten and you fit in six of the

         25  ten or five of the ten, there would be presumptive
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          2  eligibility and then for those that don't have

          3  whatever amount of criteria, then you would go

          4  through that process.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  No, the process is to

          6  give all the same review --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  No, I

          8  understand that because you answered it and I'm not

          9  trying to get you to say the same thing, I'm saying

         10  is there a thought process, and I can tell from your

         11  body language that there's a little hostility and I

         12  don't mean there to be because I believe that we're

         13  in this together in order to make it more accessible

         14  for the people that need it.  So, therefore, is

         15  there the possibility of looking into giving

         16  presumptive eligibility, if you have someone who is

         17  maybe in ranges of disabilities, but if you have

         18  someone who is very high on the disability range,

         19  there isn't that need to -- you know fair is giving

         20  people what they need, not giving everybody the same

         21  thing.

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  As I said, we've had 50

         23  percent of our applications done since 1994.  We

         24  realize what the process is, we've taken into

         25  account recertifications and we even have what's
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          2  called continual eligibility, that if a persons

          3  condition is such that it will not improve or

          4  worsen, that they won't have to go through that.

          5  But this establishes a baseline.  It allows us to

          6  say yes, this was the application, this was the

          7  determination for eligibility and now we have a

          8  baseline.  And it gives everyone the same

          9  opportunity.  The ADA guidelines don't say to

         10  proportion the population into different categories.

         11    It's those who apply, put them through the process

         12  and give them a determination.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Have -- oh,

         14  go ahead, I'm sorry.

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  No, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Have you set

         17  up a mechanism by which you are able to hear and

         18  judge from the consumers whether this process is

         19  successful?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  We are monitoring the

         21  level of phone calls, the applications that have

         22  been requested, the determinations that have been

         23  made, and everything is exceeding what we had in the

         24  previous process.  We are also following up with

         25  those who don't make the assessment center to
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          2  reschedule if they could not make their first

          3  appointment.  So there's nothing right now

          4  indicating to us that this process has discouraged

          5  the request for our service.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  I understand

          7  that.  I'm not talking about putting a hinder, I'm

          8  talking about whether you put in place mechanisms by

          9  which if you started this March 5th, by May 5th, or

         10  June 5th, a three month period, you can say this is

         11  our mechanism by seeing in which this process is

         12  successful.  I'm not talking about people calling in

         13  but maybe seeing the number of people who have

         14  applied, the number of calls, and the categories, is

         15  there a window by which you are going to review to

         16  see if the consumers, not you and I who sit around a

         17  table and talk about it, but the ones that actually

         18  need the service, if their needs are being met?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, we're looking each

         20  month at our levels, we have been doing this since

         21  1994, and we're looking at the growth pattern and if

         22  there was a down- turn in that, then we would

         23  question whether it's our process.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  How do you

         25  determine if someone is using the system that
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          2  doesn't need it or if someone's cheating?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  I would not know until

          4  there's an in person assessment, I wouldn't know.

          5  The application wouldn't tell me, it just -- that's

          6  something we couldn't begin to even delve into.

          7  We're in the business of anyone needing the service

          8  to give them a determination.  That's what we're

          9  trying to do.  And we're trying to make sure that as

         10  the level of applications come in, we give them that

         11  timely determination for the service.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Who do you

         13  directly report to at MTA?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  My boss is Butch Sae

         15  (phonetic), Senior Vice President of Department of

         16  Buses.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  My last

         18  question, if you're not able to say or be able to

         19  review how many people are possibly cheating, that

         20  seems to me that ties into my question about the

         21  mechanism by which you can judge if this new process

         22  is successful. And I've heard your answer over and

         23  over and I thought maybe if I asked it a different

         24  way I would get the answer that I think we're

         25  looking for, is how can we judge whether we are
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          2  meeting the consumers needs, and I don't know that

          3  we have gotten to that yet and I hope Chairs, that

          4  we actually plan to hear from some consumers as to

          5  see whether this process, this new process is in

          6  fact meeting their needs.  Because if we're

          7  implementing something that's not getting to the

          8  people that need it, it doesn't make any sense for

          9  us to continue to do it.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         12  Member Foster. We have questions from Council Member

         13  Stewart.

         14                 Let me follow- up very briefly on

         15  what Council Member Foster asked and what you had

         16  stated earlier Mr. Charles.  Earlier in your

         17  testimony, actually in your response to my questions

         18  earlier today, you mentioned that it was hard for

         19  the MTA to adhere to the 21 day turnaround required

         20  by the ADA.  And so the MTA then just went ahead and

         21  approved the applications and then subsequently

         22  there would have been determinations that in fact

         23  the people were not eligible for Access-A-Ride and

         24  that created all sorts of problems.  Could you go

         25  over that again?  What exactly happened there?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.  The ADA

          3  requirement is that if you don't render a

          4  determination in 21 days, then the person is given

          5  presumptive eligibility and placed onto the service.

          6    The determination process is still continuing.

          7  That 26 and 30 days I referred to is we're still

          8  evaluating the application and the need to render a

          9  decision but we weren't able to do it within 21

         10  days, we were doing it in 30 days.  And so they are

         11  on the service and then if there's a change, if that

         12  determination says there's a change, whether it be

         13  conditional eligibility, or they only need the

         14  service for interborough trips and we've given them

         15  full eligibility, it becomes a problem, both for the

         16  applicant and us to say well, if we had made the

         17  decision right in the first place we wouldn't have

         18  gotten into this predicament.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.  So, could

         20  you give us a rough idea of what the percent of --

         21  what's a percentage of the people who received the

         22  presumptive eligibility that then were found not

         23  really being eligible for full Access-A-Ride

         24  service?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  I'll get you those
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          2  numbers, I have no --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You must have some

          4  idea, to the nearest ten percent.  Are we talking

          5  about 90 percent --

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- 80 percent?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  No, I'd have to say

          9  somewhere between maybe ten and fifteen percent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Maybe ten and

         11  fifteen percent were given presumptive eligibility

         12   --

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And in fact

         15  later, say nine days later, in 30 days on average,

         16  they were found not to be truly eligible --

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  Or a change from full

         18  to conditional eligibility.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think that

         20  answers a lot of our questions and that begins to

         21  answer Council Member Koppell's pointed questions to

         22  you, which is that ten to fifteen percent of the

         23  applications were being denied with the old system.

         24  Is it fair to say that?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  About a ten percent
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          2  denial rate?  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And so now, and

          4  that was just based on doctor's notes.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  No, it's 50 percent

          6  were in- person assessments, and 50 percent were on

          7  mail- in applications.  We don't have a distinction,

          8  that ten percent it was all applications.  But we

          9  had 50 percent in- person assessments where we had

         10  denials.  Both processes gave us denials.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, but there's

         12  no breakdown as to -- it's probably across the

         13  board.

         14                 MR. CHARLES:   I would say, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ten percent of the

         16  applications coming in by mail and ten percent for

         17  which the in- person assessments were conducted were

         18  presumptively approved and then on average nine days

         19  after the required approval process overturned or

         20  denied.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And that created a

         23  lot of problems.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And so now, with
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          2  this new system, we're down to only two percent

          3  denial rates.  That's just really hard to believe or

          4  understand Mr. Charles.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Well it's early.  It's

          6  two months. I'm only giving you what --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  -- We're seeing for the

          9  first two months.  The annual numbers I'll have to

         10  compare that when we --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  -- Follow through.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We're not trying to

         14  get the MTA on anything, we're just trying to make

         15  sure that everybody who requires services is getting

         16  them, so we'll be reviewing these numbers with you a

         17  year from now as well.

         18                 We have questions from Council Member

         19  Stewart, and let me just say we've been joined by

         20  Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn.  Council

         21  Member Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 Mr. Charles, I just want to go back

         25  on a couple of questions, follow- up on a couple of
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          2  questions.  First of all, can you provide me with a

          3  copy of the ADA eligibility criteria so that we can

          4  follow- up on that?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  First of

          7  all, you just said that a client might be rendered

          8  eligible if it wasn't satisfied within 21 days.  Do

          9  you go out to assess this person in their home or

         10  where they are, or do they have to come into the in-

         11  person center?

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Right now, from March

         13  5th everyone goes to the in- person center.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but I'm

         15  trying to figure out if it's a person that is

         16  disabled, and they put in an application, why don't

         17  you have someone go to their home or where they are

         18  to at least do the assessment if you so desire to do

         19  an assessment?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  We're receiving 44,000

         21  (sic) applications a month and even higher now --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well I am

         23  looking at a point whereby most of these folks may

         24  not be able to come to the center and if for a lack

         25  of being able to come into the center, they should
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          2  be determined eligible and continue to be determined

          3  eligible even if they are not coming into the

          4  center, if they have some sort of documentation from

          5  the doctor.  I feel that something is not right

          6  there.  It's inadequate for you just to cut them off

          7  at that point.

          8                 I want to follow- up on a couple of

          9  the things that you said.  I want to know that if a

         10  doctor said it's fine that a patient needs

         11  transportation, why would it be necessary to have a

         12  disabled person go in for an in- person assessment?

         13  Or in other words, if the patient had a lengthy

         14  assessment to determine that they need some sort of,

         15  what do we call, personal care attendant by the City

         16  and by all the other agencies it was determined

         17  already, why do they need to go in again into an

         18  assessment center to be determined to get

         19  transportation?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  They're not determining

         21  it for the ADA guidelines.  Our eligibility, as per

         22  the ADA has classifications. Some get full

         23  eligibility, some get conditional for traveling in

         24  extreme whether, distance, navigational, so this in-

         25  person assessment follows the ADA guidelines to
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          2  determine what eligibility that person needs.

          3  Doctors lines don't explain that.  They don't bring

          4  that out.  That's why the in- person assessment

          5  allows for that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but at

          7  the same time, it's not just the doctor that

          8  determines that they need personal care.  It is

          9  other social services that are involved there.  What

         10  I'm saying basically, they have gone through that --

         11  I can see, if you need a personal attendant, you

         12  definitely need transportation. Because for one, a

         13  personal attendant is because one, you cannot see

         14  well, you may not have the cognitive capabilities to

         15  get around or there might be some sort of physical

         16  disability.  That's why you need a personal

         17  attendant, they cannot care for themselves so you

         18  need somebody to care for them.  So when you're

         19  saying that, they still have to go in for an

         20  assessment in person.  It tells me that there's

         21  something wrong here.  It tells me that they have

         22  gone through the system, with all the assessment to

         23  get a personal care person and then you're telling

         24  me that just because they need the transportation to

         25  go to the doctor, or to go to an appointment, they
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          2  need to come in to get an assessment by someone who

          3  may not even be as qualified to make an assessment

          4  because of the fact that a physical therapist does

          5  not know all the things that the person may have to

          6  go through.  One day because of arthritis they maybe

          7  feel a little well now and be able to walk and you

          8  tell them to go up a step, they might be able to do

          9  that on that day, but on a day when it's raining

         10  they may not be able to move.  So I don't see how

         11  you can use that as an assessment to deal with

         12  someone who has gone through the process already.

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  This is not a new

         14  process.  We've been doing it over 12 years.  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but

         16  does that mean that you did that wrong?

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  No, the numbers say to

         18  me that we're having an increase in the demand for

         19  the service, our registering base is quite high, and

         20  this ADA guideline is for a functional ability to

         21  use the transportation and that example that you're

         22  giving, whether it's one day or two days, that's

         23  taken into consideration in the interview process.

         24   --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but

                                                            69

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2  what I'm saying --

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  -- Travel abilities --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but

          5  what I'm saying basically, the doctor would have

          6  determined the medical condition of that person.

          7  But that particular day they may feel a little up to

          8  it, and they may feel a little spruced- up.  But

          9  that does not determine whether they can actually

         10  move around.  So a physical therapist looking at

         11  someone and asking them to walk up two treads of

         12  stairs and they can do that, and then on the other

         13  hand determine that that person is not eligible for

         14  the service, to me that is not a good way of really

         15  accessing how someone gets transportation.  All

         16  right, so I think we should really go back -- you

         17  talk about ADA criteria, but you have not specified

         18  any of the criteria that we're talking about.

         19  That's why I'm asking for that list.  Because I am

         20  sure that most doctors would have at least

         21  understand what it is all about before they certify

         22  someone that is to be disabled and I can't see the

         23  federal government having criteria that someone

         24  being disabled and saying that they can't get the

         25  service after the doctor has certified that that
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          2  person is disabled.

          3                 And my last thing, I don't see why

          4  you think that someone who might be a psychiatrist

          5  or even a physical therapist, even though they

          6  understand what the criteria for the ADA is all

          7  about, it's much more credible than the doctor who

          8  has been treating this patient that's seen him for

          9  some time, if he says that that person is.  I don't

         10  think you would want to know that because a person

         11  might look active and all of those things, they

         12  might have a heart condition and if the doctor says

         13  listen this patient is not to be able to -- they

         14  should be using some sort -- I don't see how a

         15  physical therapist can tell that that patient is

         16  eligible, or can get around without the proper

         17  transportation, would not be eligible for that type

         18  of transportation.   So I think you need to go back

         19  and access what you guys are doing because I can

         20  imagine seeing that you're telling a patient that,

         21  listen you're not eligible for transportation and

         22  then the patient tries to get to where they're going

         23  and collapse because the stress and all the other

         24  things that go along by trying to get along without

         25  the proper help.  So I think you should go back and
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          2  access how we do this and I'd like to know, at

          3  least, the ADA criteria.  We should all know about

          4  it so at least when we do our questioning we

          5  understand what you're doing that is contrary to

          6  what actually should be done because I don't think

          7  the ADA criteria is far fetched from what the

          8  doctors have been certifying.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         11  Member Stewart. Council Member Addabbo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         13  Mr. Chair and I want to thank all three Committees

         14  and their staff for their work on this important

         15  issue.  And Mr. Charles, thank you very much for

         16  your time and testimony today and again to the MTA

         17  for providing such a critical service.  Must be a

         18  critical service, you've got three Committee's here

         19  questioning you today.

         20                 Just a point of clarification, and I

         21  would appreciate a yes or no answer if we could

         22  here.  In your opinion, the expanded process of the

         23  assessment, does it give the MTA more control over

         24  the application process as far as approvals or

         25  denials?  Is the MTA, the --
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  --

          4  Assessments do not give that more of a controlled --

          5  in your opinion, no.

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  The state of

          8  the Access- A Ride program, budgetary- wise.  Can we

          9  compare the amount of funding it has gotten over the

         10  past two years?  The amount of funding for the

         11  actual program of Access-A-Ride.  Has it been

         12  increased over the past year.  Has it been increased

         13  or decreased?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Increased.  Our

         15  registration base is increasing close to ten percent

         16  for a year.  Our demand for trips, our registrants

         17  are using this service much more frequently each

         18  year.  So our projections for our costs are

         19  increasing, have increased and will continue to

         20  increase along with the growth.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Demand cost

         22  budget, as far as funding the program has increased

         23  you're saying?

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Okay,
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          2  there's been no decrease in the Access-A-Ride

          3  funding at all?

          4                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And lastly,

          6  for our riders, and I don't think we've spent it on

          7  the riders to an extent as much as we should have

          8  possibly, what is the mechanism -- well, first

          9  question, complaints, has MTA received any

         10  complaints on the expanded assessment process since

         11  March?  Has there been any complaints about it?

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  We've received letters

         13  from elected officials with concerns, but we haven't

         14  received any from specific customers about the

         15  process.  Concerns have been expressed about -- I

         16  believe there's a lot of misinformation such as,

         17  it's a medical exam.  It's not, it's not a medical

         18  exam.  So we haven't received anything from

         19  customers saying they were excluded or precluded

         20  from the assessment.  Nothing of that nature.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And what is

         22  the mechanism for complaints from a user rider?  How

         23  do they lodge complaints? Is it by phone call?

         24  Internet?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  We have phone call, we
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          2  have e- mail, we have address for mail- in and we

          3  receive from various sources the complaints.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And as far

          5  as you're concerned, given the ridership that you

          6  have, the complaints registered so far have been

          7  minimal and again have been based on this

          8  conception.

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  On this process.   That

         10  no one has been adversely effected individually by

         11  this process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

         13  very much Mr. Charles.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         15  Member Addabbo.

         16                 Council Member Gale Brewer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         18  very much and also Ann Cunningham thanks you because

         19  I know you're very responsive and so is your staff.

         20                 The question I have is, when

         21  individuals go through either the federal process or

         22  other kinds of disability processes, is there some

         23  way of piggy-backing on that?  In other words, this

         24  would take more time, but is seems to me

         25  particularly in the federal process, I happen to
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          2  know that process well through family members, very

          3  rigorous, may not be appropriate in terms of all the

          4  ADA standards, but certainly it's rigorous.  Is

          5  there some way of piggy-backing on that or thinking

          6  about that?

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  We can look at that.

          8  The ADA was sort of isolated, get an application and

          9  make a determination.  But we can look --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Because it

         11  would seem to me that that is such a rigorous

         12  process, it's different than going to your local

         13  health center and in fact that could cut, I would

         14  assume, do you think there are quite a few of your

         15  customers who have been through the federal process?

         16

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  I'm sure there's a

         18  percentage.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, so what

         20  would that take to kind of discuss that.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  I do --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Talking to

         23  Bee Disman (phonetic) I would assume, the local

         24  office here?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  We could see.

                                                            76

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, I would

          3  love to see that happen.  I think that would cut

          4  down -- that fail proof process goes through much

          5  more rigorous than anything that you do. Okay.

          6  Second question is, I know that Council Member

          7  Arroyo asked you about the Paratransit.  I know some

          8  of the members.  We appoint them from Manhattan.

          9  How often does it meet?  The Paratransit Advisory.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  Every two months.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Every two

         12  months.  And they have been meeting regularly?

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And when the

         15  complaints come in, you said that there haven't been

         16  many on this issue but complaints do come in, I

         17  assume your much more challenging issue of the on-

         18  time scheduling problems.

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So how do

         21  those complaints come in and how do they kind of get

         22  tabulated in general?

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  They come in, as I said

         24  by phone, mail, e- mail.  We tabulate every month

         25  and categorize the nature of the complaints.  We
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          2  respond to all complaints and we're looking to see

          3  if there's something systematically we can do to

          4  bring that down, or if it was an isolated incident

          5  and we pay a great deal of attention on the

          6  complaints.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, is that

          8  something, those complaints tabs available publicly

          9  or to the Committee?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So maybe we

         12  could get a copy since March anyway?

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.  And

         15  then my other question is, using the technology, how

         16  has it changed?  In other words, is there ability to

         17  do any of this by e- mail, many people who are

         18  disabled are incredibly knowledgeable in terms of

         19  technology.  How is the technology used in this

         20  system throughout Access-A-Ride?  In other words,

         21  can people e- mail as well as call, et cetera, all

         22  the ways in which they can contact you.  What are

         23  the technology ways?  E-mail I assume.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  E-mail is one --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  -- Phone calls, we get

          3  a lot of phone call activity.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But when you

          5  send mail back, because I know that Council Member

          6  Arroyo asked if the letter gets lost, et cetera, can

          7  you e-mail people who have an e-mail that they have

          8  an appointment on x-date?

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  We could look at that,

         10  but we find that many don't own up to having a PC or

         11  a computer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Or maybe you

         13  could do both.

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It would help

         16  the issue of contact.

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  We are looking at that

         18  because we have --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It would save

         20  money too in the end if it was fail- safe.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  All right, so you'll

         22  look at the e mail possibility for communication,

         23  and you'll also look at working with the federal

         24  government, Bee Disman and the people at Social

         25  Security regarding adding whatever ADA compliant to
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          2  their question. That would save a lot of time.  And

          3  then just finally, this is the biggest, I don't even

          4  know if I'm comparing apples and oranges here, but

          5  is there some sort of like the congestion pricing

          6  issue, if we get the transportation some of us would

          7  like to see congestion pricing, but, and the same

          8  issue here.  If we put up with whatever system this

          9  is, but, in addition the Access-A-Ride is on time,

         10  then everybody's happy.  Is there some way that this

         11  process can help your on- time vans?  Can the vans

         12  be more on- time? Which I know you're working on

         13  with this process.  Is there something --

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  With the application

         15  process?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  No, I'm just

         17  trying to compare apples and oranges here, but you

         18  might be saving money, you might be saving time, you

         19  might be using staff in a more appropriate way with

         20  this new system, and does that help you with your

         21  on- time vans?  In other words, the vans are not

         22  always on time, I'm not saying why, there's lots of

         23  reasons.  Is there any way that this system can help

         24  your vans be more on- time?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  Our new technology, you
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          2  mentioned technology, our automatic vehicle locator

          3  system --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, the

          5  AVS --

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Right, we just passed

          7  our milestone for our test --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  We expect to have a

         10  minifleet by the end of this summer and then if that

         11  proves successful, which we believe it will, we will

         12  then roll it out to the entire fleet with full

         13  beneficial use by Fall 2008.  That will help us with

         14  our on time.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So the AVS?

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Not the new

         18  system for getting people access to Access- A- Ride?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And then is

         21  there a larger, maybe you discussed this earlier, a

         22  larger or cost regarding this system?  In other

         23  words, does it cost more to do it this way as

         24  opposed to the way you did it before, or is it a

         25  wash?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  It's almost a wash

          3  because you'd have to staff internal to process the

          4  applications as well.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Charles, thank

          8  you very much. We have just one follow- up question.

          9    What is the overall budget that's been allocated

         10  for this new process where each applicant is going

         11  to be given this in- person assessment?

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  It's a multicontract.

         13  I'd have to -- I don't recall right now.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But roughly.  Is it

         15  a million dollars, is it ten million dollars?

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  To tell you the truth I

         17  don't know. I'd have to go back to my chart.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But in implementing

         19  this new system, there has to be a fiscal

         20  consideration whenever we implement a new system.

         21  And this is not a minor negligible change. This is a

         22  major change.  So before pulling the trigger on the

         23  March 5th change, there must have been some fiscal

         24  consideration as to how much this would cost.  We're

         25  not asking for a exact number.  Is it a million
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          2  dollars?  Is it five million or is it ten million or

          3  is it twenty million?  Which one of those is it

          4  closest to?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  I don't know.  We went

          6  from 50 percent to 100 percent, so this was not a

          7  drastic change in process.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But even the 50

          9  percent, what's being done now is not identical for

         10  those people.  Is it identical, is it exactly what

         11  was being done for those 50 percent that were

         12  getting the in- person assessments?

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  No, now it's a direct

         14  call- in instead of waiting to receive an

         15  application.  Blank applications were available

         16  throughout the City and we wouldn't know if someone

         17  wanted the service unless they mailed in that

         18  application.  Now they call, and now we can directly

         19  process the application, get them transported to the

         20  assessment and make a determination.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  When you say half

         22  of these applications before were processed through

         23  these in- person assessments, that has nothing to do

         24  with whether they mailed them in or not.  At that

         25  point the application has already been received and
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          2  identified.  That's why the in- person assessment

          3  was scheduled. So my question simply is, is the in-

          4  person assessment today the same as the in- person

          5  assessment before March 5th for the 50 percent of

          6  the people who are receiving --

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, yes it is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And that includes

          9  determining the physical eligibility.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.  The

         11  guidelines haven't changed.  It's the same

         12  application of the ADA guidelines.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the other 50

         14  percent who are now getting the in- person

         15  assessment, that's got to cost substantially more.

         16  We're talking about how many applications per year,

         17  maybe 50,000 applications per year?

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  Right now at about

         19  4,500 per month --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's about 50,000

         21  applications per year, that's 25,000 applicants

         22  getting the in- person assessment more than the

         23  number who used to be getting them.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How long does an
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          2  in- person assessment usually take?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  Forty five minutes to

          4  an hour.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Forty five minutes

          6  to an hour with a registered nurse or a health

          7  professional, I'm thinking when you contract out for

          8  these services it has got to be a couple hundred

          9  dollars per hour.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  No, their --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  -- Working on volume.

         13  We have a great demand coming in, and we're

         14  scheduling for this assessment.  They have a full

         15  day, and based on volume there, their pricing is

         16  competitive on that.  We'll get back to you with the

         17  information on that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, we'd like to

         19  really understand how much more the MTA is paying

         20  for it, but I'm willing to bet that we're talking

         21  about five to ten million dollars a year.

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  I'll get you the

         23  numbers, I'll show you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's a pretty

         25  good amount that we're spending here.
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          2                 Council Member Arroyo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          4  Maybe more direct, can you get us a breakdown of one

          5  center per borough staffing pattern in each center,

          6  the levels of staff that you have there in terms of

          7  physical therapist, RN, and so on?  The numbers, and

          8  some salaries attached to that.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Mr.

         11  Charles and we look forward to following up with you

         12  on this.  Again, I do want to commend you for

         13  increasing the quality and reliability of Access- A

         14  Ride, although still recognizing that we have a ways

         15  to go.

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, I agree.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We have our next

         20  panel consisting of Inez Muscatello and Vernelle

         21  Albury from the MTA Senior Advisory Committee.  This

         22  panel will be followed by the panel consisting of

         23  Edith Prentiss, Patricia Dolan and Paula Wolff.

         24                 Ms. Muscatello and Ms. Albury, please

         25  come up. Edith we have you on the next panel --
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          2                 MS. PRENTISS:  Oh, I'm sorry.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's all right.

          4  Stay right there.  Just stay right there, it's fine.

          5                 MS. PRENTISS:  I was chatting, I

          6  apologize.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It's fine.

          8                 We've been joined by Council Member

          9  Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn.

         10                 Please identify yourself for the

         11  record and proceed.

         12                 MS. MUSCATELLO:  Good morning ladies

         13  and gentlemen. My name is Inez Muscatello, I'm from

         14  South Ozone Park, Civic Associate West in Queens,

         15  also I'm with the Senior Advisory Committee for the

         16  MTA.

         17                 I'm here to complain, I was hoping

         18  that Mr. Charles would stay because we're having

         19  problems with our handicap people on this new

         20  application process.  As a recertified member for

         21  the Access-A-Ride, normally the doctor, knowing my

         22  condition, knowing what's wrong with me, some days I

         23  am well, some days I'm not, put in for me to have

         24  Access-A-Ride.  Under this new program that they're

         25  talking about, I don't know the day the gentlemen
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          2  was speaking, I might go there and feel very good,

          3  and the next day before I get out I'm not feeling

          4  well.  What I want to know, since when does an

          5  organization have the right to question a medical

          6  doctors notice.  I mean he's the one who can tell

          7  whether I can breath, whether I can walk.  The

          8  physical therapists can't tell that I have open

          9  heart surgery, the physical therapist cannot tell

         10  whether I have difficulty breathing, these are the

         11  things that I have and they can't tell these things.

         12    So why are they not allowing to continue with the

         13  medical examiners from your center or your doctor,

         14  sending in an application?  If they're so worried

         15  about it, when they have the application let the

         16  doctors have a form also that the doctor can fill

         17  out and say Ms. Muscatello, the reason why she needs

         18  Access-A-Ride is because, and he can put medical

         19  reasons that they can read.  Not a layman's

         20  statement and then I don't have to go to that

         21  center.  This is one of the things I would like to

         22  know about.  And I think it's not fair for them to

         23  demand that every person, all of us are not the

         24  same.  And that every person must go to the center.

         25  Today coming here I felt good. Now when I leave here
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          2  I might not feel good.  But the idea is, I don't

          3  think it's fair for them to put us all into one

          4  category and say everyone of us must show up.  I

          5  have members at our center right now that are

          6  talking about not being bothered with the

          7  Access-A-Ride, and we want our older people to get

          8  out and continue to function.  But they don't want

          9  to go through this process all over again.  I have

         10  one lady that the doctor comes to her house. Now

         11  that means that she really has to have help,

         12  Access-A-Ride. Why does she have to leave her house

         13  and go to a center when the medical doctor himself

         14  comes to her.  If that's the case give him a letter.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         16                 Ms. Albury.

         17                 MS. ALBURY:  Yes.  Good morning, and

         18  I want to first thank all of the Council for having

         19  us and really understand our problem.  I want to

         20  thank the MTA for having the privilege really of

         21  having the Access-A-Ride.  Because without the

         22  Access-A-Ride we would not be able to really do the

         23  things that we are.

         24                 With the MTA Advisory Senior

         25  Committee, I'm a member of that, but I also
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          2  represent the St. George's Episcopal Senior Group,

          3  the CNR, which is the Center for Nursing

          4  Rehabilitation. Our consult person, Alan Ban

          5  (phonetic) has the taskforce and I'm speaking for

          6  all of us.  And I'm going to emphasize changes.

          7  Many of us are vulnerable.  To just say we're going

          8  to change from what we've been doing without

          9  improvement and coming in to making changes, that is

         10  very frightening.  Not knowing who is going to judge

         11  you, those who are not in a position to judge you.

         12                 I have problems when they said there

         13  are many, many persons applying.  Yes, they're

         14  applying, but they're also dropping.  What about the

         15  dropouts?  This is what I'm hearing all of the time

         16  when I said to be heard, to fill out your

         17  application, and continue to keep it, just make your

         18  complaints until it gets better.  What they want is,

         19  they have applied, I know so many that are in the

         20  program that have applied, and they've been so

         21  disappointed in the services they have dropped it.

         22  But still they are on the roll of what he has

         23  mentioned.  That's on the roll as one of the persons

         24  that he could give you statistics for.  But we know

         25  that that person has dropped it.  So the person
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          2  doesn't come to the center anymore, they're not

          3  going anywhere anymore.  You might look at me and

          4  say, my mentally, I asked God to give me this and

          5  this is a gift that I have.  That I could do this.

          6  My body tells me something else.  I feel like I

          7  could jump up and go to the door without the cane

          8  very easily, that is not the case.  How can I be

          9  judged with that particular thing.  You might say,

         10  how old would you say I am?  You might say I'm 79.

         11  I'm 83 years old, thank God for that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I was going to

         13  guess 49.

         14                 MS. ALBURY:  Thank you.  But I think

         15  the two points here is enrollment dropouts.  Persons

         16  in need really do not want to get involved with it

         17  because we hear when we do have persons come in from

         18  MTA to encourage us to join up and take service,

         19  they're turned off with things that have happened.

         20  Those who are keeping it are very tolerant, because

         21  we have no other means.  All of the places that I

         22  told you that I'm a part of, I could never never

         23  make it.  My doctor, he has referred me to the

         24  chiropractor.  I am not supposed to go up steps.  I

         25  know I don't go up steps, I cannot go up steps, so
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          2  then it's no subway for me.  It doesn't get better.

          3  Who makes the idea and makes the decision that year

          4  after year we're getting better.  In my case it's

          5  not getting better, it's getting worse.  So there is

          6  so much more if some of the problems that came up

          7  that were given to you, I think that at some other

          8  time we can certainly go into some of them.  And I

          9  think return trips, a lot of return trips I said no

         10  return.  No return because if there's someone there

         11  at this particular place where I'm going that said

         12  I'll give you a lift home.  You could be waiting, we

         13  have five minutes to be ready to leave, but we're

         14  not supposed to call until half an hour later, and

         15  if you call a half an hour later, the driver cannot

         16  be found and they might say hold on for another

         17  hour. You're someplace where you can't sit down, you

         18  can't stand up --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Albury --

         20                 MS. ALBURY: -- An hour or so.  Thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure, thank you.  I

         23  do want to focus the testimony on the change in the

         24  procedure because we know that there are still on-

         25  going issues with the waiting for the van.
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          2                 Let me ask the both of you to briefly

          3  describe what this board is that you sit on, the MTA

          4  Senior Advisory Committee?

          5                 MS. ALBURY:  That is a Senior

          6  Citizen, we represent all five boroughs in New York

          7  City --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And how many people

          9  are on this advisory committee?

         10                 MS. ALBURY:  There are eleven of us,

         11  there's supposed to be at least four from each

         12  borough and we also have a Council representative

         13  and we meet twice a month and each one of us has

         14  different problems in our own borough that has to do

         15  not only with Access-A-Ride, but also for Mass

         16  Transit.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.  Thank you.

         18  Thank you very much for joining us today.

         19                 Oh I'm sorry, please, we have a

         20  question from Council Member James.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES:  Ms. Albury,

         22  you know I used to work with you in Bed Stuy under

         23  the leadership of Council Member Al Vann, you are an

         24  amazing woman.  You've done great work in Bed Stuy

         25  and I know that there's nothing stopping you.
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          2  You're at every meeting, every hearing, and so we

          3  continue to celebrate you and salute you.  Thank Ms.

          4  Albury for what you do.

          5                 MS. ALBURY:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          7                 Our next panel, Edith Prentiss,

          8  Patricia Dolan, Paula Wolff and Ms. Paulette

          9  Collins.  I'd like to just perhaps allow Ms. Collins

         10  to testify because she has an Access-A-Ride

         11  appointment that is going to pick her up shortly.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Unlike those

         13  of us who take the subway.

         14                 MS. COLLINS:  Thank you very much

         15  Council for having us here today.  I come from --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Just identify

         17  yourself for the record.

         18                 MS. COLLINS:  Paulette Collins and I

         19  come from City Island, Councilman Vacca's District,

         20  and I do depend on Access- A Ride three or four

         21  times a week at least.  I would be lost without it.

         22  I wouldn't go any place without it.  The changes

         23  that I am objecting to, everybody's caught on the

         24  physical assessment.  We've have physical

         25  assessments, I've been to physical assessments
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          2  twice. It's really no big deal as far as I'm

          3  concerned.  But what I'm concerned about is the way

          4  Mr. Church (sic) said he's getting more phone calls

          5  because he has eliminated every senior center from

          6  applying for Access-A-Ride for their clientele and

          7  helping them get applications.  He's eliminated

          8  social workers and visiting nurses applying for this

          9  application which happened before.  Now the only way

         10  a person can get an application for Access-A-Ride,

         11  is to call in Access-A-Ride and have them send you

         12  an application and go through the process of the

         13  physical assessment.  Before, I would send in

         14  applications at my senior center for my people, I'm

         15  a retired nurse and I knew, you know, the form

         16  needed to be filled out, and what they would do was

         17  mail in with their pictures and then they would get

         18  called for an assessment, or not get called,

         19  depending on what was written on the application and

         20  it was no big deal.  This has come to a point now

         21  that we can't do this.  We can't do a bulk thing

         22  where say ten or fifteen people apply for

         23  Access-A-Ride at the same time from a senior center

         24  because that's no longer allowed.  And that I really

         25  really strongly object to. As far as the physical
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          2  assessments, that's no big deal.  But this to me is

          3  a big deal and that we can't help people and we

          4  can't identify an 85 year old lady that needs

          5  Access-A-Ride in our senior center that's going to

          6  get her back and forth to our senior center. And

          7  really this is one of the big bruhahas.

          8                 As far as Access-A-Ride, I have to

          9  just tell you one thing, over seven years I have

         10  seen a vast improvement and even as far as today the

         11  company called me, the dispatcher, and said your

         12  driver is going to be 15 to 20 minutes late because

         13  he's tied up on the Bruckner Expressway and this has

         14  happened to me now at least three or four times

         15  since March 5th.  So I think that's an improvement.

         16  You don't mind waiting, or being able to go inside

         17  and wait for 15 or 20 minutes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Do they only call

         19  you when you're coming to City Hall?

         20                 MS. COLLINS:  No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, good.

         22                 MS. COLLINS:  In fact I had given 250

         23  Broadway as the address so they didn't even know I

         24  was coming to City Hall.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.
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          2                 MS. COLLINS:  And I thank you for

          3  your attention and I hope that I clarified some

          4  things.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Ms. Collins, do you

          6  have to leave right away or can you stay for a few

          7  more minutes?

          8                 MS. COLLINS:  I'm being picked up for

          9  12:30 in front of 250.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Could you stay for

         11  just a little while because we do have some

         12  questions for you, but the questions may also apply

         13  to some of the other panelists?

         14                 MS. COLLINS:  Okay.

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  She's got 24

         16  minutes to get out of the building and around the

         17  corner, she might be better served by you asking the

         18  questions now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Let me ask

         20  you this question and this can apply to the other

         21  panelists also.  Ms. Collins, you seem to be

         22  suggesting and correct me if I'm wrong, but you seem

         23  to be suggesting that there are now people who

         24  previously would have applied for Access-A-Ride but

         25  now are somewhat deterred from the new process.  Is
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          2  that correct?

          3                 MS. COLLINS:  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So Mr. Charles in

          5  his testimony and answers to questions repeated and

          6  pointedly state that there is a substantial increase

          7  in the number of Access-A-Ride applications that are

          8  coming in and being processes.

          9                 MS. COLLINS:  But he's eliminated all

         10  the ones that would have come in by mail through

         11  senior centers and through physical therapists and

         12  through -- so of course he's going to get more

         13  applications being applied through this because

         14  that's the only way you can do it now.

         15                 Before if you had a day that 15

         16  people needed Access-A-Ride from your senior center,

         17  I would take 15 applications, fill them out, take

         18  their pictures, and then tell the people mail your

         19  application in and they would go for their physical

         20  assessment, and everything else at that point.  And

         21  I always told them to give them six weeks to get

         22  everything together. Now he's crossed us off of that

         23  list.  We can't do that anymore.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So you're saying

         25  that he's only counting -- he's saying that all the
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          2  Access-A-Ride applications are up.  You're saying

          3  that he's only counting the ones that come through

          4  this in- person process, not the ones that

          5  previously came in by mail or referral, by medical

          6  or other service providers, but I think he's saying

          7  that overall the applications are up.

          8                 MS. COLLINS:  No, because he has

          9  eliminated any senior center from filing an

         10  application for somebody.  He's eliminated any

         11  visiting nurse, any social worker to put in Access

         12  A- Ride applications.  He's even eliminated doctors

         13  from putting in an application from Access-A-Ride.

         14  The only way you can get an application now is

         15  calling the toll free number and saying I'm Mrs.

         16  Collins and I need an application for Access-A-Ride.

         17    He sends you an application within 10 days of your

         18  appointment and also says to you, if you don't keep

         19  this appointment we will not pay for another

         20  appointment for your application to be processed,

         21  you'll have to pay to get to the assessment area

         22  yourself.  And when I wanted to ring his neck,

         23  excuse me, when he's saying that we've had more

         24  applicants since March 5th, because he's eliminated

         25  almost 50 percent of the people who are applying for
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          2  people.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You're saying that

          4  when he says there's an increase in applications he

          5  wasn't counting the previous applications that were

          6  not coming in by mail?

          7                 MS. COLLINS:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Because he seemed

          9  to be suggesting overall, all the applications today

         10  compared with all the applications before, whether

         11  they came in by mail or they were referred by their

         12  nurses or doctors or other service providers, the

         13  senior centers.

         14                 MS. COLLINS:  No, because he can't

         15  possibly be more because there are only so many

         16  people that are answering phones in the 800 number.

         17  What he has eliminated is the people who filled out

         18  applications as a group.  The bulk applications.  He

         19  has eliminated all of that so the bulk applications

         20  went in, sometimes I mailed in 15 to 20 applications

         21  at a time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So regardless of

         23  where the numbers stand relative to before March

         24  5th, when the procedure changed, you are

         25  affirmatively stating that there are significant
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          2  numbers of people who now are not applying --

          3                 MS. COLLINS:  Correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- For

          5  Access-A-Ride because they either don't want to or

          6  really can't do it on their own, and the system

          7  today requires that these individuals do it on their

          8  own?

          9                 MS. COLLINS:  Yes, or maybe have a

         10  family member do it for them but certainly a social

         11  worker can't do it for them anymore.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  We have

         13  questions from Council Member Koppell.  I thank you

         14  for not ringing Mr. Charles' neck.

         15                 MS. COLLINS:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Let me

         17  understand something because what Chairman Liu

         18  suggested, obviously we all feel.  He claimed, he

         19  claimed that applications are up.  If what you say

         20  is correct applications should be down, not up.

         21                 MS. COLLINS:  Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Now what I'm

         23  wondering is why -- assuming he's not lying about

         24  that, I assume he's telling the truth that

         25  applications are up, but there may be other reasons.
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          2    In connection with this new system did they do a

          3  lot of publicity about applicant applying?  Did they

          4  encourage people to apply or anything like that?

          5                 MS. COLLINS:  No.  He did not say

          6  applications were up, he said phone calls for

          7  applications were up because that's the only way you

          8  can --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  No, I

         10  understand that, but he did say applications were, I

         11  mean we have his statement here, he did say there

         12  have been more applications on an absolute basis and

         13  that's what Councilman Liu and I are puzzled about.

         14  Because what you say makes eminent sense.  If you

         15  have to go through this new system rather than just

         16  mailing it in or having some assistant or some

         17  person involved mailing it in, you would have

         18  expected that the applications would go down.

         19                 MS. COLLINS:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Because of what

         21  you said, it makes sense.  But he said applications

         22  went up and it just doesn't make any sense to me.

         23                 MS. COLLINS:  It doesn't make any

         24  sense to me either.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well, we'll
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          2  have to inquire into that further.  Thank you.

          3                 MS. COLLINS:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Ms.

          5  Collins.

          6                 MS. COLLINS:  Okay, I'm sorry I have

          7  to leave --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's okay.  Take

          9  it easy getting out the elevator and out to your

         10  van.

         11                 MS. COLLINS:  Okay. Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MS. PRENTISS:  I'd like to say first

         14  off --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'd like you to

         16  identify yourself for the record Edith.

         17                 MS. PRENTISS:  Oh, okay.  Everyone

         18  knows me.  Hello I'm Edith Prentiss --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The tape machine

         20  doesn't know you.

         21                 MS. PRENTISS:  I'm Edith Prentiss and

         22  the President of 504 and the Vice President of DIA

         23  and I'd like to say first and foremost that there's

         24  nothing stopping a social worker, a nurse, visiting

         25  nurse, or a doctor from sitting there with a
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          2  telephone and calling the 800 number and saying

          3  these are a number of people who want to apply for

          4  Access-A-Ride, and give their names and addresses

          5  serially.  Anyone can make that call, anyone does

          6  make that call. So it's the same entree system

          7  except not sending a piece of paper.

          8                 I would like to go back to my

          9  testimony now.  I actually think that Access-A-Ride

         10  is correct in requiring everyone to go through the

         11  physical assessment.  I think that many of our

         12  doctors, even people that we have relationships with

         13  are not really attuned to our functional abilities.

         14  I think that many people do not necessarily see a

         15  single regular doctor.  Physical therapists actually

         16  do know pretty much what people can and can't do.

         17  Physical therapists can assess them.  Psychologists,

         18  psychiatrists can address people's mental

         19  functionings.  One of the concerns though is the

         20  need to possible for an advocate to say, or a family

         21  member say, in front of an individual with a

         22  cognitive impact, you know this person really needs

         23  help which can be a little embarrassing but we go

         24  through life with this.

         25                 I think that there are, it would make
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          2  sense to me that they actually send everyone through

          3  this.  I think it is an issue of equity and

          4  fairness.  The person who is going to use

          5  Access-A-Ride to go their doctor, to go to the

          6  senior center, to go wherever, to shopping, to the

          7  beauty parlor, is going to use Access-A-Ride.  What

          8  is the difference of using Access-A-Ride to go to a

          9  local HHC facility in their borough to have an

         10  evaluation. It's not the same evaluation as an M 11

         11  Q.  M 11 Q says what your deficits are.  A

         12  functional analysis says can you stand, can you do,

         13  can you not do.  I think though that the concept of

         14  bringing us back every five years is a little silly.

         15    I'm not going to grow new lungs.  I'm not going to

         16  grow a new heart.  I will never improve in those

         17  manners, nor are my transportation options going to

         18  change. I actually use Access-A-Ride very, very

         19  minorly.  I use it for arduous trips, places I've

         20  never been before, places where I'm going to be

         21  late, et cetera.  So for me it's part of a

         22  transportation continuum.  The fact that we don't

         23  have a full transportation continuum that is

         24  accessible forces us to utilize Access-A-Ride and

         25  other services.  We also know in five years there
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          2  are not going to suddenly be every subway

          3  accessible.  The accessibility of the system is not

          4  going to improve, so why should they bring me back

          5  in five years?  I think it's important for --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well you're

          7  advocating that they do away with the renewal

          8  process then.  They're saying that it used to be

          9  three years, now it's five years --

         10                 MS. PRENTISS:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- So that's kind

         12  of in the right direction.

         13                 MS. PRENTISS:   True, but everyone

         14  has to come back for the face to face every five

         15  years.  Yes.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  No, not if

         17  you've been determined to be --

         18                 MS. PRENTISS:  In those special

         19  categories that have not been defined and I do say

         20  that, unless you're in those few categories.  I

         21  think it's important to say that people are not

         22  necessarily need less services.  The blind are not

         23  suddenly going to be healed.  People who have

         24  deficits and losses are not going to regain them.

         25  But I don't think it's so terrible, as Ms. Collins
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          2  says, we've all been through the assessments, we've

          3  survived them. When we first discussed this at my

          4  local Council of Aging, there was like this hysteric

          5  reaction, and when you sit down and say hey wait a

          6  second, people go out of the house to use this

          7  service. People use this service to get to their

          8  doctor.  What's the difference?

          9                 I think that it is, it's making a

         10  baseline.  When I'm not sure which of the Councilmen

         11  was talking about how many points people get.  Well

         12  how many points of disability do you know unless

         13  everyone has the same evaluation.  And you need to

         14  have that same evaluation at some point in the

         15  process.  I think it --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You're actually

         17  here, I think this is the first time in five years

         18  that you're sitting here and agreeing with something

         19  that Access-A-Ride did, so congratulations --

         20                 MS. PRENTISS:  No, no, no, no, no.

         21  But I would also like to say --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- To Access-A-Ride

         23  and MTA.

         24                 MS. PRENTISS:  -- Another very

         25  important aspect of Access-A-Ride that has not been
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          2  discussed at this point is, being certified to have

          3  Access-A-Ride in our locality is important when you

          4  go elsewhere.  So when I went to New Orleans in

          5  January, I was able to use their Access-A-Ride

          6  system.  They do not have an accessible transit

          7  system.  When we go lobbying day in Albany, we use

          8  Star.  So, I think it's important and I would like

          9  to see more people certified for Access-A-Ride

         10  because people don't realize that having

         11  Access-A-Ride in New York let's them use Paratransit

         12  elsewhere.  And that's a very important

         13  consideration.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Thank you

         15  Edith.

         16                 MS. PRENTISS:  You're welcome.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Congratulations to

         18  the MTA.

         19                 MS. PRENTISS:  You know I have plenty

         20  to complain about.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Patricia Dolan.

         22                 MS. DOLAN:  Thank you, my name is

         23  Patricia Dolan. I'm the Director of Queen's

         24  Connection.  It is a borough- wide program of the

         25  Queen's Community House and we advocate and
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          2  coordinate Paratransit service for seniors.  And I

          3  have the greatest of respect for my colleagues here

          4  from the disabled community, but I think that when

          5  we're dealing with the aging community, who make up

          6  the overwhelming majority of Access-A-Ride users,

          7  that we're dealing with a different population who

          8  very often have different needs.  And those

          9  Access-A-Ride customers in my experience are

         10  frightened of this new application policy.

         11                 The policy has only been in effect

         12  for two months so I can't really access the real

         13  impact of it because the data is not available yet,

         14  but I do know anecdotally what is happening so I'm

         15  going to tell you a story because I think that's the

         16  best way I can deal with that.

         17                 We have a client, Joan, she's 75

         18  years old, she's been an Access-A-Ride customer

         19  since 2001.  She suffers from permanent chronic back

         20  pain, which prevents her from walking more than a

         21  block or two from her home.  Using public

         22  transportation is out of the question for Joan.  She

         23  maintains an active social life, visiting friends

         24  and family, taking care of her personal needs,

         25  including medical appointments and visiting the
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          2  local senior center, all thanks to Access-A-Ride  In

          3  March, when she learned her eligibility expired and

          4  that she would have to be interviewed, she panicked.

          5    But she made an appointment for an interview and

          6  in April went to JFK airport for her interview,

          7  which she likened to an IRS audit.

          8                 She was not given access to an

          9  application until she arrived for the interview.

         10  The interviewer challenged every claim she made,

         11  ranging from the distance of the nearest subway

         12  station to her home, a subway station she used daily

         13  for years before retiring twenty years before, to

         14  the pains she experiences.  The interviewer refused

         15  to accept a copy of her doctor's letter, making her

         16  feel as though she was trying to defraud the MTA.

         17  When she could not climb the model steps the

         18  interviewer asked her to climb, he repeated the

         19  request at least three times before accepting her

         20  plea for mercy.

         21                 Joan is still waiting to hear from

         22  Access-A-Ride.

         23                 I had another one about six weeks

         24  ago.  His sister called me.  This was a man, a

         25  resident of Woodhaven Queens, who had received a
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          2  diagnosis of terminal lung cancer.  He was going

          3  home to die.  He was in Hospice care at  home.  He

          4  needed Access-A-Ride to make a few visits to his

          5  doctor before he became utterly homebound. When he

          6  was told that he had to go to an interview because

          7  there were no exceptions, according to Mr. Charles,

          8  which he told us, his sister said, we'll take care

          9  of it.  We'll make the sacrifice that we have to

         10  make to take care of him.  I'm not putting him

         11  through this.

         12                 I listened to Mr. Charles' testimony

         13  this morning for over an hour.  He lives in a

         14  different world then the world that I live in, or

         15  the world that our seniors live in, or the people

         16  that you heard from this morning.  These people are

         17  not seeking services that they are not eligible for,

         18  or that they don't need.  They need these services

         19  because without them they are homebound and for them

         20  that means not leaving their home at all and

         21  ultimately ending up in institutions that you and I

         22  have to pay for.  True, many of them have gone

         23  through certification processes with other agencies,

         24  but many of our seniors have not.  They have worked

         25  hard all their lives, they've retired, and now well

                                                            111

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2  into their "golden years" they have become totally

          3  disabled and dependent on a little piece of

          4  transportation that they need to keep them a little

          5  bit independent and maintain a little bit of their

          6  dignity before they die.  I don't think that's too

          7  much to ask.

          8                 Before I conclude my remarks, I would

          9  like to finish them by thanking the City Council,

         10  and in particular Councilman Liu for your generosity

         11  and in leadership in including last year's budget $4

         12  million to support the vans that senior centers

         13  around the City operate.  Those vans not only take

         14  our seniors to the centers, to doctor's

         15  appointments, but also carry their meals to them at

         16  home when they become homebound.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  That

         18  initiative certainly is greatly supported by

         19  Chairperson Arroyo and Chairperson Koppell and our

         20  other colleagues.

         21                 MS. DOLAN:  Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We have Paula Wolff

         23  and then we have some questions for you.

         24                 MS. WOLFF:  My name is Paula Wolff

         25  and I work as a Direct Services Supervisor at the
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          2  Center for Independence of the Disabled in New York.

          3  CIDNY is an advocacy organization dedicated to

          4  removing the barriers that keep person with

          5  disabilities from achieving their full equality and

          6  integration in the community. And we work with

          7  person with all types of disabilities.

          8                 In my work at CIDNY, and in my

          9  previous work at another organization that works

         10  with people with disabilities, I've completed

         11  hundreds of applications for Access-A-Ride for

         12  persons with disabilities.  I can tell you that as

         13  someone experienced with doing applications, when

         14  you're experienced with doing them, and the

         15  applications are completed properly, I can say that

         16  after completing hundreds of them, I've only had a

         17  handful of those I've completed ever be called in

         18  for those eligibility interviews or be denied

         19  because I knew how to complete those applications.

         20  I would suggest that Access-A-Ride do training

         21  sessions for community groups that serve people with

         22  disabilities so that those organizations that are

         23  already working with people with disabilities and

         24  used to complete those applications can complete

         25  them correctly.  It's a far more efficient use of,
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          2  these are agencies that already frequent, are

          3  already familiar with clients, places that clients

          4  already go to get their service needs met, places

          5  that consumers already feel comfortable and it

          6  wouldn't cost the City money, money that could be

          7  used to actually improve Access-A-Ride service, pay

          8  for vans, pay for drivers, pay for GPS systems and

          9  other important things instead of paying money to

         10  pay for costly certifiers fees.  I would say to you

         11  that I sat in occasionally on those certifier

         12  interviews and frankly they're a farce.  The

         13  certifier asked the consumer the exact same

         14  questions that they've already answered on the

         15  Access-A-Ride questionnaire. The clients already

         16  answered them.  The certifier asked them again. And

         17  when the client answers them, if the certifier

         18  doesn't like the answer, asks them a second, third,

         19  and fourth time.  That's all those interviews are.

         20                 Okay, the certifier may be a physical

         21  therapist. Well that doesn't really tell you

         22  anything if the consumer happens to be blind.  That

         23  really doesn't assess the person's mobility skills

         24  as a blind person.  Neither does the ability to walk

         25  up the stairs of a mock bus.  The ability to climb
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          2  up the stairs of a mock bus does not assess your

          3  ability to get to the mock bus from your home that

          4  may be a couple of blocks away.  It doesn't assess

          5  your ability to stand and wait for a bus, to walk on

          6  uneven pavement, to walk up and down hills, to walk

          7  in snow and ice, to have the energy to travel to and

          8  from your destination to get there and have the

          9  energy to travel back, or to assess you if your

         10  disability is a hidden disability, such as a heart

         11  condition, or a seizure disorder, chronic fatigue

         12  syndrome, or many other disabilities. What might

         13  make more sense is to help physicians to do a

         14  clearly defined letter explaining their consumers

         15  disability and how it impairs their ability to

         16  travel or to ask some of us professionals to help

         17  write up a form for physicians to use which would

         18  clearly explain the disability and how it impairs

         19  travel ability.  And I would be glad to serve on a

         20  committee to help draft such a form. That form could

         21  be done by the clients own physician who knows the

         22  consumer well.  That would make more sense, and

         23  again would save the City a fortune in certifiers

         24  fees and that money could then be used to improve

         25  Access-A-Ride service.

                                                            115

          1  TRANSPORTATION, MENTAL HEALTH AND AGING

          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          4  much.  I just wanted to follow- up on Pat Dolan's

          5  comments about likening these interviews to IRS

          6  audits.  I have to imagine that Joan, this person

          7  that your organization has been helping has had a

          8  particularly difficult experience.  Is the

          9  experience that she went through typical for many of

         10  the applicants?

         11                 MS. DOLAN:  I want to make it clear

         12  that we've only been dealing with a very limited

         13  number of people who have been effected by this

         14  thing up until now.  We're only two months into this

         15  new process.  So I haven't spoken to many people,

         16  but I get the feeling that when they go for the

         17  interview that they are having a hostile experience.

         18    The person who is interviewing them seems to be

         19  you know, it's kind of like a prove it to me kind of

         20  attitude that they're getting.  And I think a lot of

         21  it is coming from what my colleague just pointed

         22  out, with people that don't have visible

         23  disabilities.  I'm thinking perhaps of a person who

         24  has a severe heart condition.  He or she may look

         25  perfectly healthy to the interviewer and that may
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          2  turn the interviewer off who has been dealing all

          3  day with people who have very visible handicaps. I

          4  simply make that observation.  I don't want to

          5  accuse those people of doing anything.  But the

          6  people that I have spoken to up until now have

          7  complained that they have really gotten the feeling

          8  that the people that they're dealing with want to

          9  see to it that they're not going to get the service.

         10                 MS. WOLFF:  I did ask at a community

         11  why all of Northern Manhattan, Washington Heights

         12  and Inwood, and did get feedback only from one

         13  caseworker who said one client has been to a face to

         14  face and was not negatively impacted.

         15                 Chris, the next speaker has actually

         16  gone through the process so he may be able to

         17  further elucidate this issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 MS. WOLFF:  Can I turn in this

         21  written testimony.

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I'll take it

         23  from you.  Give it to the Sergeant.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Our

         25  next panel consisting of Chris Noel and Adele
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          2  Bender.  Please join us at the witness table.  Mr.

          3  Noel please proceed.

          4                 MR. NOEL:  How are you doing?  Good

          5  afternoon. Okay, in terms of these speakers, I think

          6  there were a lot of credible things that were said.

          7  From the MTA standpoint I think there were a lot of

          8  things that were said that aren't really a reality

          9  but we won't go into that because that stems outside

         10  of the renewal process of what we're here today.

         11  That could be I guess mentioned at a later meeting

         12  or something.  But for example, I was injured three

         13  years ago.  I didn't apply for Access-A-Ride until

         14  maybe about May of 2004, so when I received the

         15  renewal process and the paperwork for applications,

         16  it kind of struck me as weird because I said, you

         17  know, in two or three years I don't think I had been

         18  cured, but once I found out it was across the board

         19  for everyone, I guess it was to find out who the

         20  cheaters were, the people who weren't supposed to be

         21  using Access-A-Ride and this was the way that was

         22  going to weed them out.  Great.  Fine.  What

         23  happened was, when I didn't return my application

         24  before that deadline they suspended me from service

         25  and that was fine too. They said okay you have to
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          2  get renewed.  That's fine too.  I got my doctors

          3  note and handed in my application and got my

          4  pictures done which was something that was very hard

          5  to find unless you have a printer at home for a

          6  computer that can print pictures.  But whatever the

          7  case, my service was suspended.  It has been

          8  suspended now for three months and it still is

          9  suspended even though I completed my evaluation and

         10  my initial application.  Did everything I had to do.

         11    I called them.  I said is there a temporary ID I

         12  can use.  I do a lot of things with not- for-

         13  profits.  I play on three disabled sporting groups.

         14  I said I have to carry sometimes a sports wheelchair

         15  with me.  I'm a spinal cored injured, so unless my

         16  condition miraculously changes, I still need the

         17  service very much so.  There was nothing that was

         18  being done.

         19                 Something the MTA representative had

         20  said before is you now you call their customer

         21  service line and they're supposed to be the

         22  friendliest of people, saying oh well, you're an old

         23  process, I think the complete opposite.  When you

         24  call, and I called not a number of times because I

         25  know how it is being on that other line, but I
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          2  called just to see about getting maybe a temporary

          3  ID or when I would be able to be my ID back.  I did

          4  my e ballot North General Hospital on April 18th and

          5  I still haven't gotten anything back and I've called

          6  before a number of times saying you know at least

          7  try to see what happens with speeding up the

          8  paperwork, et cetera, et cetera.

          9                 So, long story short, I had to get

         10  here today by mass transit, taking a bus all the way

         11  to the East Side, I live on the West Side of

         12  Manhattan to get to the 4 train to take the 4 train

         13  all the way here.  And I'm going to have to do the

         14  same thing to get all the way back.  That's fine,

         15  okay.  But at the end of the day to wait so long

         16  after renewing, my injury hasn't changed.  So to go

         17  through this, the MTA representative saying it's not

         18  being done to weed out say the people who might have

         19  lied or got a false doctors note to get their

         20  service, then what is the service actually doing.  I

         21  think if anything to have this evaluation it should

         22  be for new applicants to say okay, well bring your

         23  application to this processing center and then we'll

         24  do everything one shot.  But to do everything across

         25  the board, there are a lot of people who are
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          2  hindered by this now, namely me.  You know I'm a

          3  spinal cord injured, so that means everywhere I do I

          4  go with this wheelchair and sometimes stations

          5  aren't accessible, sometimes you don't want to get

          6  on a crowded bus and have to hold up a bus. That's

          7  why Access-A-Ride comes in very handy.  Like I said,

          8  I'm still new to injury, but there are certain

          9  things that could be done for someone that is

         10  disabled and I thought that's what the ADIAC

         11  (phonetic) was for.  Not to hold up people on

         12  paperwork.  As I said, I did my eval on April 18th.

         13  To this point and this day I haven't received notice

         14  of anything.  And also going back into the point of

         15  maybe not taking the doctors note as credible, I

         16  think that's just crazy because as mentioned before

         17  you have a physical therapist doing the evals and I

         18  questioned the physical therapist doing my eval she

         19  even asked why are we doing this?  All they were

         20  doing was asking us questions.  I didn't do a

         21  physical exam in front of her. I didn't show her

         22  injured I am or to see if I'm faking or not.  You

         23  know I could have just gotten a wheelchair and went

         24  over there and wheeled myself there and faked it.

         25  So having a physical therapist do this evaluation
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          2  and create this process over a doctors note.  I

          3  don't think a doctor would put his license on the

          4  line for faking someone's injury so they can get

          5  Access-A-Ride.  So to do this process is kind of

          6  crazy and for someone like myself, granted I can

          7  imagine what the elderly go through, I'm 32 myself

          8  so I'm not elderly yet, but I still have the same

          9  needs as everyone else who is disabled no matter

         10  what their condition, whether it be age or

         11  disability.  And I think this renewal process

         12  totally just makes it uneasy for everyone.  I think

         13  if anything it should be for new applicants.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Mr. Noel.

         15                 Ms. Bender.

         16                 MS. BENDER:  Hi.  Excuse me.  My name

         17  is Adele Bender.  I'm Queens Borough Coordinator for

         18  JAPC, which stands for the Joint Public Affairs

         19  Company for Older Adults, and I was just told to get

         20  down here for an Access-A-Ride hearing.  I did not

         21  know that it was going to be on the new process,

         22  however, so I'm not going to bother giving you my

         23  testimony that I wrote up.  But what I did do is I

         24  did cut out something from the Chronicle Newspaper

         25  where somebody had said it all about what goes on
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          2  with Access- A Ride completely.  But I will take one

          3  part out of that where he said, the mobility

          4  examination at JFK contractor consisted of

          5  ascertaining if the passenger can board a bus, read

          6  the destination sign and ring the bell.  No

          7  consideration was given to whether or not the

          8  passenger can maintain his or her balance on the

          9  actual real life crowded bus or if the actual signal

         10  is out of the passenger's reach.  That's the one

         11  little part.

         12                 So, I mean to have those questions

         13  posed to somebody that is disabled or has difficulty

         14  getting around is kind of silly.  I'm a person that

         15  could get around but I cannot always read the sign

         16  if the bus is a certain distance, and the steps are

         17  kind of steep for me because I'm little.  Doesn't

         18  mean I'm disabled.

         19                 All I'm trying to say is it's stupid

         20  questions for people that really and truly need

         21  Access-A-Ride and from some of the stories that I've

         22  been reading about and hearing about Access-A-Ride,

         23  I wouldn't even want to go through the evaluation if

         24  I can help it to go through Access-A-Ride.

         25                 My husband happens to have right now
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          2  a lot of health problems, uses a walker and we use

          3  our rainy day money to take taxicabs and to take car

          4  service.  Everybody doesn't have rainy day money.

          5  But from all the stories I heard about

          6  Access-A-Ride, I really wouldn't even want to use

          7  it.  And to add insult to injury, when I hear the

          8  stories of what people are going through to have to

          9  go out to JFK, as a matter of fact I had called up

         10  Access-A-Ride, I figured, let me give it a shot, and

         11  when I got the application, I don't know, I felt

         12  that there was an arrogance there.  I just tore it

         13  up.  Never kept the appointment.  But I'm maybe, not

         14  my husband, but in our family we're in a little

         15  better situation than a lot of other people.  And if

         16  there is a humiliating process that people should

         17  have to go through, let Access-A-Ride spend more

         18  money on giving better service to the people that

         19  really need it.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         22  much, Ms. Bender and Mr. Noel.

         23                 While there being no other witnesses,

         24  this joint hearing of the City Council's Committees

         25  on the Aging, Transportation, Mental Health, Mental
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          2  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse, and Disability

          3  Services is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 12:42 p.m.)
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